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SENATOR DEBORAH ORTIZ:  I want to ask everybody to please allow access for those in wheelchairs to come forward.  Please try to find a seat as quickly as possible.  There’s a lot of really important information, and we want to be able to have time to hear that.  So, if we could ask the public to please clear the aisles and allow those who are in wheelchairs to be able to come safely and comfortably to the front.  And others, please try to find a seat as quickly as possible so we can make sure that we get as much testimony as possible.  If we can all be seated within the next two minutes so we can start on time.


Thank you.

##


Welcome.  Let me ask everybody to please turn off their cell phones and pagers.  Let me ask you, please, to respect those that are in wheelchairs who want to be up front and, when appropriate, to be able to come forward without having a problem coming down the aisles.  And I ask the conversations to be kept low so that we really can hear from the speakers the very important information that we need to save these critical programs.


With that, let me introduce myself.  I’m Senator Deborah Ortiz.  I’m the chair of the Senate Health and Human Services Committee.  I am joined by wonderful staff as well as my colleague, Assemblymember Judy Chu, from this region.  The staff is here to provide technical assistance to help us work through these issues.  Let me ask you all to understand the timelines that we’re facing and how we want to conduct this hearing today.


One of the most incredibly moving things that I’ve seen since I’ve been an elected official in the State Legislature was an occurrence in the State Capitol last week.  The chair of our Senate Budget Committee, who is also a member of this policy committee, could not be here today—Senator Chesbro—but his staff is here to represent him.  He did what needed to be done in Sacramento.  What he did was to do what many of you are doing here today:  to assure that the parents and the children with disabilities were assembled outside of the Governor’s office in Sacramento.  They were wearing shirts that said, “My child is not fraud.  My child is not waste.”  And they put real faces and real stories to the cuts that are being proposed by our Governor.


This is one of our goals today and to do so in a community that is closer to the Governor’s residence.  As he has challenged each and every one of us to listen when he goes into our districts, we think it’s appropriate that those who are far away from the Capitol understand in his community what he is proposing for California.  We want the public, the Legislature, and the Governor’s Administration to fully understand the Governor’s proposals and the drastic impact they will have on everyday lives of Californians.


One thing I’ve learned in the recent negotiations over the deficit bond and the spending limit is that the Governor can be responsive when a compelling case is made.  You will help us make that case today.  At the same time, let me be painfully honest.  We have to be realistic and understand that given the current political impossibility of getting a revenue increase passed, we will, in the end, have to make some changes and some reductions in these programs.  They will be painful.  They will be difficult.  But we want to do it in the best way possible to preserve those very core services for those who are most in need.


So, while we understand and want everyone else to understand what these cuts will bring about, we don’t want to build any false and unrealistic expectations; that those of us who spent most of our careers fighting for these programs, understanding how vital they are to our communities and how streamlined they are already and how much trouble you all go through to get into these programs—and many of us went into public office to protect these programs—we have come to the realization that we, unfortunately, will be a part of difficult decisions.  But we, again, want to find a way to protect the core functions of these programs.


We’re also looking today for your ideas and suggestions for a better way to do things, and I don’t expect you to come here willingly and easily and without a lot of turmoil on your part trying to give us that advice.  But those efficiencies and savings that you deal with in these programs every day as you deal with the ins and outs of the system I think are the best proposals for us to take back.  Anything from you and your experiences in these systems that might prove to be helpful, we are coming to you to ask you to give us that direction; again, streamlining the programs but still maintaining the core functions. 


At this time, I’m going to ask another friend and a colleague who has been an incredible advocate in this area, who’s from your community here, to take the time to provide some opening comments.  I want to publicly thank her for all she has done in her leadership role as chair of the Assembly’s Subcommittee 1, which is the Assembly Health and Human Services Committee.  She has been quite an advocate and a real leader in this area. 


Assemblymember Judy Chu, thank you for being here.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER JUDY CHU:  Senator Ortiz, thank you so much for holding this hearing.  It is at such a timely moment for us, and I thank you for holding it and holding it in Los Angeles.


I have many questions and concerns regarding the proposed budget cuts.  Governor Schwarzenegger pledged to compassionately protect children and to eliminate government waste, fraud, and abuse.  Imagine my dismay when I saw that the bulk of the cuts are actually in health and human services.  And so, rather than eliminating waste, fraud, and abuse, rather than making cuts to the healthiest of California, his target seems to be the sickest people of California:  AIDS patients, those children under California children’s services, children with leukemia, spina bifida, and cancer.  With enrollment caps, are you really going to tell a child with brain cancer that they have to be on a waiting list until a slot opens up?  Are you going to tell a person with AIDS that they have to wait until there is room before they can get the drugs that will save their lives?  Are these people what the Governor proposes to be “waste, fraud, and abuse”?


And then there’s the proposed 10 percent Medi-Cal cuts—the Medi-Cal providers cuts.  Now, I went to Children’s Hospital and saw pediatricians saving the life of an infant who was born with leukemia and right at birth had to be treated with chemotherapy.  It is difficult enough to find these pediatricians.  California’s 42nd out of the fifty states in Medi-Cal reimbursement, and already half of the physicians don’t take Medi-Cal patients.  Are we going to face such a severe shortage that people will not be able to find doctors if they’re on Medi-Cal?  Will it cost our state more as these patients go towards more costly emergency services?


I remember the Governor talking very passionately during the gubernatorial debate about enrolling every child possible into Healthy Families.  Now it appears that with the proposed cuts to Healthy Families, that there will not be a single child more that can be enrolled.  And this is despite the fact that we get two federal dollars for every one dollar that we put in.


And then there’s the suspension of the Lanterman Act:  the suspension of services to the developmentally disabled of this state and to In-Home Supportive Services.  With that Act, the state made a commitment to serve the most vulnerable of California.  With these cuts, will children with autism and cerebral palsy have to go from regional center to regional center to beg for services?  Is that what our state is coming to?


We must not balance the state’s budget on the backs of the most vulnerable residents of this state.  We must find a fairer way to solve the state’s budget problems.  I hope that with today’s hearing we can find the information that will give us a more fair and balanced budget, a more just budget; a budget that will protect the disabled, the elderly, and the children of this great state of ours.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  Let me thank Assemblymember Chu.  As always, incredibly eloquent and a credible advocate for the issues we’re addressing today.


Let me now thank my colleague and friend, Senator Alarcón, for joining us and allow him an opportunity to make some opening comments.  Hopefully, we’ll be able to meet our timeline and move forward, but I really do appreciate his commitment.  Another strong advocate in these programs.


Welcome.


SENATOR RICHARD ALARCÓN:  Well, good morning.  Or good afternoon.


I want to thank, first of all, Senator Ortiz for convening this session and giving us the opportunity to better understand the proposed cuts, as well as to weigh in on a different perspective on how the budget should be handled.


I would only echo Assemblymember Chu’s comments.  However, I do want to say that I do have an optimistic view of the world—at least for this week.  We’ll see how things pan out.  But, the fact that we were able to negotiate with the Governor for this year’s budget I think is a very good sign that this is the extreme proposal and that there’s room for us to negotiate somewhere in between. 


I want to thank all the people who are present because, as you know, the extent to which you weigh in will indicate the extent to which you’re heard in this process, and the budget that ultimately results will be reflective of the input that the Governor has as well as the Legislature has.


So, I want to thank all of you for making sure that Los Angeles—Assemblymember Chu’s and my community—is protected, given that Los Angeles has the highest rate of poverty in the entire country.  Or at least the highest concentration of poverty in the country.


We’re just here to learn more.  We want to fight for you; protect you from any cuts whatsoever.  We have a tough battle at hand.  We have a $15 billion underage that we have to address next year and every year thereafter.  And so, as you are here fighting for protecting against cuts, I hope you will also be there with us to fight for the new revenues that we’ll need to protect against those cuts.  But we’re not here to speak; we’re here to listen.  


I want to thank, again, Senator Ortiz for joining us in our community.  She is an absolute champion for health care to all, as well as education.  I expect that we’ll do better for having her be a vanguard in protecting the services to the communities that are represented here and throughout the State of California.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, my friend.


Again, if there’s a chance to take a seat, please do so.  And please save your applause for the testimony at the appropriate time.  I really appreciate the fact that we’re being supported by your support in being here.  I know how hard it is for many of you to get here, whether you traveled or didn’t travel from afar.  So, I would rather hear your time on the mike because, as Senator Alarcón indicated, we’re here to listen to your direction.


With that, let me ask now that the first panel of speakers come forward.


The Governor’s proposing to cap enrollment in various health and human services programs, and those programs you’ve heard a little bit about:  the Healthy Families program, regional center services.  Many of you whose lives would be very, very different but for those services.  AIDS Drug Assistance Program.  Many of you wouldn’t be here today but for these programs.  Those are three programs that we are going to cover in this first panel.


The Governor’s proposal would require substantive changes to existing statute, including the suspension of a 30-year-old act known as the Lanterman Act.  It also clearly tries to shift those costs to counties as the provider of last resort at the same time that we may not be able to restore $4 billion going to cities and counties because of the Vehicle License Fee.  Under the proposal, the programs would be capped in the current year based upon program participant enrollment levels; primarily the level of enrollment that was anticipated for January of ’04.  So, it’s a number that’s been established that doesn’t reflect caseload or people who will become eligible because they become very ill or because they become so poor that they’re entitled to health care.


The objective of the Governor is once this enrollment has been reached, eligible individuals needing these services would be placed on a waiting list, not sure that their healthcare needs would wait for their eligibility, not sure that their need for drugs, if they’re in the ADAP program, can wait for that caseload to be reduced.  The eligible individuals on the waiting list would not receive any services at all, other than in-regional service programs that would only provide intake assessment:  They tell you what it is you need, but they couldn’t provide the actual services that they determine you actually need.


So, those who are going to be on the first panel are individuals who are going to talk about these programs.  And let me ask them to come forward to the mikes here:  

· Jeff Elder, who, I understand, receives services from the AIDS Drug Assistance Program.  

· Maria Bejarano, who is enrolled in the Healthy Families program, and her children.  Many of you heard her words earlier.  If Ms. Bejarano is here, please come forward.

· And Jared Moses, who has twins who are regional services clients.


Please come forward and take a seat up here.  As they’re coming forward, my understanding is Ms. Bejarano is herself a health educator.  Her child has severe asthma.  She is likely to speak in Spanish, but I understand we have an interpreter.


Jared Moses—is Mr. Moses here?—is in the L.A. County District Attorney’s Office.  Your children, I understand, Mr. Moses, have autism.


The key part of each of their testimonies is talking about the importance of getting attention immediately.  Particularly if your child has autism, there’s a very small window of time.  If you don’t get diagnosed and into services at that time, your child may be permanently shut out of their full potential and capacity to benefit from services.  Absolute caps on programs don’t address that reality.


So, thank you for joining us.  I appreciate you coming here today and your willingness to share your stories with the families here.  All of us know that you represent many, many families out there and that the Governor’s program to cap Healthy Families would mean that more than 100,000 California children would be without the medical attention they need next year; medical attention that promotes wellness and medical attention to serious illness.  


So, we thank you all for being here today and please begin.


Señora?


MS. MARIA BEJARANO:  [Gives her testimony in Spanish.]


MS. DARLA GARCIA:  Hello.  My name is Darla Garcia.  I’ll be translating for Maria Bejarano:


My children are in Healthy Families.  I am the mother of four.  One of my son’s has severe asthma.  By just one attack he’ll die.  My husband works to support all of us.  The money that he makes he makes in order to pay for rent, food, and clothing.


Since my children have been on Healthy Families, we don’t have to visit the emergency room anymore.  We’re able to attend the treatments for my child who has severe asthma.  I don’t have to miss work; neither does my husband.  If the Governor Arnold cuts Healthy Families, it will be detrimental for my family and others.


As I stated before, one attack, one asthma attack, for my son without his treatment will cause him to die.  I plead Governor Arnold to please to find other alternatives instead of cutting because of Healthy Families.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Gracias.


Our next speaker is Mr. Moses.  Welcome.


MR. JARED MOSES:  Thank you.


My name is Jared Moses.  I’m a deputy district attorney for Los Angeles County.  I’m also the father of five-year-old identical twin boys who were diagnosed with autism, and these are my boys here.  This is Evan and this is Daniel, and they recently turned five years old.


My boys were initially diagnosed at the age of two, and I remember the day very, very clearly.  Obviously, it was a very significant day in the lives of my wife and myself.  By afternoon of the day that we received the diagnosis, I was on the phone with the Lanterman Regional Center.  There followed a period of intake and assessment, but within about two to three months, my boys were in about a 35-to-40-hour-a-week program, which included speech therapy, occupational therapy, and a play-based therapy called “Floor Time.”  They were in a preschool program for developmentally disabled children.  We also had some behavior modification intervention.  


A year later, a year after receiving services, we went back to the UCLA Autism Evaluation Clinic with Dr. B. J. Freeman, and her words to us were, “Mr. and Mrs. Moses, your boys have made incredible progress.”  Those were her words.  And I attribute that, in large part, to the early intervention services we received through the Lanterman Regional Center.  These are services that kids with autism particularly, as you indicated, Senator, cannot wait for.  This is a disability.  With intensive early intervention, the future of a child with autism can be rewritten, and we can have children growing into adults who are self-sufficient, who can hold down jobs, who can get married.  They are children whose disabilities become all but imperceptible because of the early intervention.


My boys, when they were first diagnosed, had very little language—almost no language.  They had no sustained eye contact.  They had no interest in other children.  They had very little interest in adults.  They engaged in a lot of behaviors we call “stimming” (self-stimulatory behaviors):  hand-flapping or head-shaking or spinning in circles.  They’ve now just turned five years old.  They have an extraordinary and ever-growing vocabulary.  They can put together twelve- to fourteen-word sentences.  They are interactive.  They are playful.  They are engaging in pretend play, which is something that children with autism are not supposed to be able to do.  They wrestle; they play.  They know their alphabet, their numbers.  They’re playing CD-ROM games on the computer.  They’re actually ahead of the curve as far as even typical peers on the academic level.  They can site read dozens and dozens of words.  They’re beginning to be able to read words.  


These are all developments that I attribute, in large part, to the early intervention services they received.  It’s like they are different children.  For children with autism, every minute is precious, and to be told you have to sit and wait while natural attrition opens up a spot for your child is just a devastating thing.  For our family, a wait list like that would have been an absolute disaster.


One of my guys now will come to me and say, “Daddy, let’s go wrestle on the big bed.  I’m the Hulk.  Rahh!”  It’s something we never would have thought could have happened two years ago or three years ago.


And the last thing I want to say is that for parents of children who have been recently diagnosed with a developmental disability, your world is absolutely turned upside down.  It is a time of great distress; a time of great anxiety.  The regional center provided services not only for my children but for my wife and myself which included respite and counseling services.  There’s a recognition there that these families have to be kept intact.  I think family preservation is one of the goals of the Lanterman Act.  I was told by someone at the regional center that the rate of divorce among parents with disabled children is in the 80 to 90 percent range.  But with services like respite and counseling, it helps the parents maintain.  It helped us maintain our sanity.  It helped us maintain our family intact, and it helped us create a more loving and supportive environment in which our children could flourish.  These are all benefits that we received.  They’re extraordinary benefits, and I really fear, were these benefits to be taken away, the consequences would be dramatic and awful.


So, thank you very much for your time.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Danny and Evan are smiling in those photos, and that’s, I think, a statement about the quality and importance of these programs.


We’re already behind schedule, so let me once again carefully remind the public, the more clapping, the less testimony.  So, please, let’s save it for the end, but thank you.


I understand that we have Howard Jacobs, who is here with us today, rather than Mr. Jeff Elders.  I thank you for coming, and welcome.


MR. HOWARD JACOBS:  Again, my name is Howard Jacobs, and I’m a person who’s been living with AIDS for over fourteen years.  Fourteen years is quite a long time, and quite honestly, I have no intentions of giving up now.


People with AIDS have heard a message of hope in the last few years with new drug therapies and access to the AIDS Drug Assistance Program, commonly called ADAP.  But Governor Schwarzenegger has proposed denying people access to life-saving medications by capping enrollment in ADAP.  


This policy is a big step backwards for the State of California.  Our state can now enact a policy that states like West Virginia, Alabama, and Texas have.  In Texas, a wait list was endorsed by now-President Bush, and I think a majority of California voters would not want to see this mean-spirited policy in our state.  We should not be balancing the budgets on the backs of the most vulnerable, particularly people with disabilities and those with AIDS.  That is wrong, and that is bad for California.


A wait list is poor health policy because it may increase the likelihood of viral strains that do not respond to current treatments.  That could cause an increase in opportunistic infections and an increase in unfavorable health outcomes.  We have made big strides in keeping people with AIDS well.  We are delaying sickness and death for longer periods of time by providing access to medications.  We cannot reverse that commitment in California.


Take my story, for example.  I have been taking medications for fourteen years, often relying on ADAP.  When triple-combination therapies came out, I benefited tremendously and went back to work.  Unfortunately, after my body could no longer take the toxic side effects of the medications and the responsibilities of full-time employment, I recently became disabled.  Yet, I currently have prescription drug coverage under COBRA that I will lose next year.  Will I then go on a waiting list, potentially causing damaging viral replication if I cannot access ADAP?  Is that my incentive for returning to work and paying taxes?


My story is not unfamiliar.  What about others who lose their prescription drug coverage for other reasons?  Or those who are dropped from the program accidentally?  We know people will be dropped from this program due to human error.  What happens to them?  And what about those who get diagnosed late in their HIV infection and need immediate treatment or those who are on a supervised medical drug holiday?  Will the sickest be given the priority for medications?  A wait list will not ensure that the most sickest will get medications or for those who stop medications for a period of time.  Furthermore, a wait list provides a disincentive for people to know their HIV status.  Why should someone go for an HIV test if they know they may not get access to medications?  We need to break down barriers to HIV testing and not create them.


This policy may sound penny-wise but it is clearly pound-foolish.  There is no doubt that people who are diagnosed later in their spectrum of HIV disease have more complications and worse health outcomes than those who are diagnosed earlier and treated with medications by an experienced HIV physician.  This policy threatens these procedures and makes this proposal fiscally unwise, unsound, and unreasonable.


I am here today to tell you that ADAP saves lives.  We need our elected officials in the Legislature to stand up for the sick and the elderly and the most vulnerable.  Governor Schwarzenegger told “true lies” to get elected.  HIV does not go away in two hours like story lines in his movies.  


I have to fight this disease every day, and I need your compassion.  Please stand up for people on ADAP who need you the most.  Do not cut the programs we rely on to keep us alive.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much.


Let me just say—and then I’m going to open this up to questions from my colleagues—that we’ve been joined by Senator Vincent.  


I’d like to comment on something, and then, I think it’s helpful if there are questions from my colleagues since we’re doing well on time.


The proposal is known as the “Mid-Year Cuts.”  Prior to this budget that is going to be introduced by the Governor in January, we are dealing with mid-year cuts.  We’re going back in and the Governor’s proposing a means of cutting costs further, which we all have to do, but that is not the challenge.  The challenge in these programs is Mrs. Bejarano’s family income on January 1 would make her ineligible on January 1 versus already being in the program even though her children have the same illness.  Or had we wanted to take care of her children in such a way that they did not get very ill, we would not be able to allow her children to be enrolled in the program.  If Mr. Moses’ children were diagnosed on January 1 of 2004 as being autistic, the Governor’s proposal would simply say, Can’t allow them to participate in the program.  If Mr. Jacobs was diagnosed on January 1 versus already having been in the program, he would be told, You’re not eligible for the program because we have a cap.


So, that’s the false barrier that’s being proposed here as a means of balancing the budget and cutting, I guess, government waste and fraud and abuse.  At least we’re told that’s the case.  What we’re suggesting is there’s probably a better and sounder way to save the state money.  By not having these individuals and families in these programs, we do pay for them, and we pay for them at a much more expensive rate.


We’re attempting to illustrate that this doesn’t make much sense.  But that doesn’t mean that we don’t realize that we have to find a way to protect these programs but do it differently.


With that, let me allow my colleagues an opportunity.  But before that, let me thank my colleague, Senator Vincent, who is always, always here in my committee in Sacramento, here in Los Angeles, who’s been one of the real cornerstones of committee work and just an incredible advocate for the people that we care about.  Let me allow him an opportunity to say a few words, if he’d like, or weigh in on questions.


Senator Vincent?


SENATOR EDWARD VINCENT:  Thank you very much, Madam Chair.


I really get the most out of hearing people address the things they need.


UNIDENTIFIED:  Speak up, sir.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you.  I said I don’t speak up too much.  I don’t like to speak a lot; I like to do a lot.  So, I don’t want to take up a lot of time, taking up time talking to you about this thing.


But I want to say this.  I read the first part of the Department of Finance invitation when Senator Ortiz got this message saying, “Thank you for the invitation to have a Department of Finance representative at the informational hearing you will be holding in Los Angeles on December 15.  Unfortunately, given the need to close the budget”—as though we didn’t know about it; that she just got here—“I am unable to send a representative.”  You know, they should have sent a representative because you need to know what the story is, and you will get the whole story.  


But again, I’ll say this is not a movie.  This is not acting.  This is business, and we need to deal with that.  People keep referring to the fact they need to go to the people to get what they want.  We need to go to the people and give them what they need, and that’s what I’m in office for.


Thank you for coming.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


Let me offer an opportunity for my colleagues to ask questions of this panel, if appropriate; otherwise, we can move on to the second panel.


Assemblymember Chu?


ASSEMBLYMEMBER CHU:  Well, in terms of the ADAP program, let’s focus in on that.  Are there any proposals that you would have?  I think it’s clear that the cap on the waiting list is not a good suggestion, especially for life-threatening illnesses.  Are there any other ways in which we can potentially find savings in the program?


MR. JACOBS:  As a person living with AIDS, one of the things I can say is ranking the importance of the program to save money.  As an activist, I can’t specifically come up with certain ideas except to say how we purchase our drugs and the price that we purchase them on.  Clearly, we can look at more efficient ways to purchase drugs at the lowest cost possible, and that’s something right now we do not see within the framework of our state.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Good direction.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER CHU:  Yes, that is.  Thank you for that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You should know that a lot of us are looking at better ways and more affordable ways of purchasing drugs, and I was going to make some comments to the Medi-Cal proposal, but it’s a consistent message.  Thank you for that reminder.


Other questions from other colleagues on any of the programs?


Let me just thank the panelists for coming forward.  Gracias, Señora.  And good luck to all of your families and all of you as we move forward in this challenge.


Let me now invite our second panel to come forward and discuss the Governor’s proposal to eliminate what are termed as “residual programs” in the In-Home Support Services program.


There are 74,000 people in California who receive services through the In-Home Support Services Residual Program.  We call it residual because it is a program that the state and counties fund and get no federal match for.  It’s one of the promises California made as a state to go beyond what the federal government helps us with financially for those who are eligible in this program.  This program is designed to enable the aged and disabled persons to live at home rather than in an institution.  Not only does it improve quality of life, it prolongs life.  And the In-Home Support Services program funds these types of services; services delivered to minor children whose In-Home Support Services provider is their parent.  Parents are staying home with these incredibly disabled children.  They are facing financial loss and risk because they want to provide the best care for their children, and this is the program the state says, We think that that’s a good thing to do and let us help you fund that.


It also funds services to consumers whose In-Home Support Services provider is their spouse.  Again, many of us who have been caretakers understand.  Those spouses who give their lives and take care of their loved ones and provide that qualify of service are the ones that we have said ought to be rewarded and financially supported in some very minimal way.  That’s at risk of being eliminated.  Protective supervision services provided to clients needing around-the-clock services; payment in advance of service delivery for cases where the recipient is severely disabled; services that are limited to domestic chores only; clients who are provided with restaurant meal vouchers.  Those are the programs that are at risk.


Today’s panel consists of the following individuals, and I’d like them to come forward:

· Elizabeth Beltram, who is an In-Home Support Services provider for her son who has a disability.  Is Ms. Beltram here today?

· Diana Jung, a former college professor who cares for her husband.  Is Ms. Jung here?  Please come forward.

· Evelyn Hawks, who cares for her daughter, Hester Brown.  And Ms. Brown is also here today, I’m hoping.


With that, do we not have speakers for this panel?  Welcome and please join this area, and the first speaker can begin.


MS. ELIZABETH BELTRAM:  Thank you.


My name’s Elizabeth Beltram, and I am the single parent of two teenagers with developmental disabilities.  Dominic is fourteen and Monique is thirteen years old.  They are both clients of the Lanterman Regional Center.


Dominic was two years old when he was diagnosed with autism.  At that time, due to the severity of his disability, people told me to put him in an institution.  He had severe, self-injurious, and aggressive behaviors in addition to mental retardation.  Because I have advocated for him and gotten him the early intervention and services that he has received, he is doing much better now.


Shortly after Dominic’s diagnosis, my daughter, Monique, was diagnosed with developmental delays.  Her deficits are mostly in learning.  Monique has loss of memory and has to relearn with __________ reapproach.  She is severely dyslexic and was told she would never read.


Before my children were diagnosed with developmental disabilities, I worked as an income tax consultant for twelve years.  I also have experience working in immigration law and as a notary public and translator/interpreter.  When Dominic was diagnosed around ’91 and ’92, I had to quit my profession.  I had to learn about behavior management and child development.  I became active in parent support groups and the Family Resource Center.  The regional center provided me with many needed supports and services.  I had to quit my job in order to be able to care for the kids and their needs.  We tried other care providers and after-school programs, but those were not successful.  When we had other care providers, they were not consistent and did not see much progress in my children.  I had a more vested interest in maintaining their services and providing them with the continuity and care they could not get from any other providers.  


Due to their disabilities, both of my children go to Special Education schools.  They have benefited tremendously from the early interventions and other regional centers’ services and have made progress as a result of those services.  


About five to six years ago, I was able to get In-Home Support Services for Dominic.  Before that, I had to go back to part-time work on and off in order to support my family.  Getting In-Home Support Services helped me to stop worrying about returning to work while trying to take care of my children’s needs.  When Dominic was about seven to eight years old, he was in an after-school program because I was working.  At that after-school program, he got hurt and had five fractures in both of his arms.  It was hard to know what exactly happened because Dominic could not talk to tell us what had happened.  Even when I was able to hire care providers who were willing to work for minimum wage, they did not have the expertise or knowledge to provide the safe and adequate quick care.  I had already applied for In-Home Support Services and was told he did not qualify.  Then the regional center helped me to get an advocate to get In-Home Support Services.  The advocate helped me to get IHSS.  


My children go to school during the day, but due to their needs, they have many medical and other appointments before and after school hours.  For example, they have vision therapy and psychiatrists to see.  I take care of their personal needs and take them to all of their appointments.  Some of their interventions they receive require me to participate or observe their therapy so that I can become familiar with what needs to be done at home or how to adapt the home.  I have to make sure they get the services they need, but I also have to transport them to the therapy . . . [tape turned – portion of text missing] . . . need and without the services, that children would suffer and regress.


If I return to full-time work, I would have medical insurance for myself.  I still don’t have medical insurance.  But In-Home Support Services is helping me to be able to take care of my children at home.  I need to keep my family together, and In-Home Support Services helps me to do that.  I quit my profession so that I could keep my family together and not place Dominic in an institution.  In addition to all the care that I provide to my children, I also help out with my mother and my brother who are, both, disabled.  


In the sixties and even now, we have worked so hard to keep people in the community and not to hide people with disabilities, and it seems that we’re going backwards, where we forget and abandon people with disabilities.  Without services such as In-Home Support Services, we would be going backwards to a time of institutionalization and hiding people with disabilities because we would have no other choice.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much for that explanation of what’s at risk, and thank you for what you do.


I know there are going to be questions from my colleagues, so please stay at the panel.


Let me just take a moment to also welcome a colleague and a friend and, again, another advocate.  It’s like preaching to the choir here with those of us that are listening.  I wish, as Senator Vincent suggested, that we had representatives from the Governor’s office here.  But let me allow my colleague and friend, Senator Gloria Romero, from the Los Angeles area, if she wishes, to weigh in with some comments.  Obviously, we’re here to listen as usual.


Senator Romero, thank you.


SENATOR GLORIA ROMERO:  Good afternoon.  I’m Senator Gloria Romero.  I’m the chair of the Senate Democratic Caucus and, of course, a member of the Health Committee.  


Senator Ortiz, I want to thank you in particular for your leadership in making sure that policy is brought to the people.  The people are very much important in terms of helping us determine the priorities and the policy that affects health and human services.  I look forward to hearing this presentation.  There’s nothing more important than seeing the faces of the people who either live by and are advantaged by the policies that we produce or who live by and are abused by the policies which we produce.  So, I look forward to the hearing today.


Thank you again, Senator Ortiz, and all of the Health Committee members for having this hearing today.  And for all of those of you who came today, I know it’s not easy to get to this building, but I appreciate it and look forward to your testimony.  Your voices are the most important thing we can hear as we go forward in terms of determining budget allocations and policy priorities.  So, I  look forward to all that you have to say today.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, Senator Romero.


Let me ask the next speaker to be Ms. Hawks—Evelyn Hawks—and then we’ll go to Ms. Jung.


Welcome.  You may begin.


MS. EVELYN HAWKS:  Thank you.  Thank you for allowing me to speak.


My name is Evelyn Hawks, and I’m a homecare provider.  I’ve been raising and providing care for my daughter for forty-seven years.  I cook, clean, and wash.  I must take her everywhere that I go.  I also find time to provide service for an elderly person, Mrs. Jenkins, and I must take Hester with me.  Hester has no one else to care for her.  Without me, Hester would be placed in an institution.  


To cut the IHSS residual program is to deny thousands of consumers like Hester quality care.  We’re here to tell the Governor that in-home care is a vital service.  It allows consumers to live with dignity and respect.  It allows providers to continue caring for their loved ones.  Therefore, I’m asking the Governor—Hester and myself—we’re letting him know we oppose the budget cuts.


I want to remind the Governor also that homecare saves the state hundreds of thousands of dollars.  Therefore, not only does it save money, but it saves lives.


Thank you for letting me speak.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


MS. HESTER BROWN:  My name is Hester Brown.  My mom prepares my food for me.  She has to take me to the doctor, help me with my bath, put my clothes on.  I love my mom and I need my mom to take care of me.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  She’s done a great job, obviously.  Thank you, Hester.


Let’s now have Ms. Diana Jung, who is here today.  You’re a former college professor who has been caring for your husband, I understand.


Thank you, and why don’t you share your story with us?


MS. DIANA JUNG:  [Begins speaking in Chinese.]  Good afternoon.  My name is Diana Jung.  I’m a homecare worker.  I’m going to speak in Chinese.  [Continues her testimony in Chinese.]


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


TRANSLATOR:  My husband’s name is Thi Chi Jung.  He’s 84 years old.  He’s a retired general from Taiwan.  He has Parkinson’s disease, Alzheimer’s disease, and lots of other problems.


In our regular daily life, he would not be able to find his way home right now without my supervision.  I have to help him bathe and help him in everything in the daily life.  It’s a 24-hour job because I’m so afraid to lose him and I worry every day.  Sometimes, because of his disease, he can’t even recognize me and our children.  He has been eight times very sick and three times a stroke.  He has a really bad temper sometimes.  Because he doesn’t know who he is, he cannot control his temper.  Only the wife can put up with all this.


SENATOR ROMERO:  A very good wife at that.


TRANSLATOR:  And provide him with endless love.  Only the patience and the love we can share at this moment.


MS. JUNG/TRANSLATOR:  We have altogether eight children.  They are in the professional job in this society in the United States, and they contribute to this country and they pay tax.  I take care of my husband so they will be worry-free to perform their daily job.  But IHSS only pay me for 108 hours to take care of my husband.  Every hour everyone knows is $7.50, so every month I only receive $810, without a holiday, without a benefit.  I would like to ask the Governor:  $810—can you have a good life?


I want to remind the Governor I take care of my husband.  It’s a 24-hour job because we are a couple.  We love each other.  Governor, how can you be so cruel to take away my 108 hours?  How can I find another job?  I like to tell everyone.  


I want to ask the Governor, does he have a parent?  Because parents contribute to this society.  Parents bring us to this world.  Without the parents, how can we be alive today?


Chinese has a saying:  We have to remember when we drink the bottled water, where’s the water coming from and who digs the well?  That’s our parents.  Please, Governor, and please, all of you, tell the Governor parents are older now.  We need to take care of our seniors the same as your parents.


I strongly oppose this budget proposal.  Governor, you also have parents, otherwise you wouldn’t be here today.  Please remember we all going to get old, including you.  And please remember we all need your help.


And thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


We have about ten minutes to ask questions, but before we do that, I want to make an announcement.  For those of you who weren’t able to get a copy of the agenda, the Sergeants have made additional copies, and they are now available in the foyer.  Is that correct?  So, they are available out there.  And for those of you who are not part of these panels, you should know that at the end of the fourth panel we will allow you to come forward and make public comment.  So, you will have an opportunity at the end to also comment on this.  We do want to get through the panels.  


I want to open up for questions, if there are questions from my colleagues.  Before I do that, I am going to ask the staff that are from Senator Chesbro’s office, who has been a leader, chairs the Budget Committee, really has been a leader in particularly these areas, and ask staff, whether it’s Ana Matosantos, who’s to my left, or Diane Van Maren, at the far end somewhere, to comment on this component because it’s a little bit complicated.  We have decided in California to allow family members to be reimbursed for the, we think, quality of care and avoiding their family members going into an institution and costing the state more, if we even have the institutions available.  The relationship to potentially funding it with federal dollars and the complications of that I’d like staff to please go on the mike and explain.


MS. ANA MATOSANTOS:  California has provided In-Home Supportive Services to low-income, aged, blind, and disabled people who need such services to remain safely in their home for a while.  Since the early ’90s, the program was expanded to include federal financial participation.  California has continued to provide services that are not federally reimbursable, and those include services that are provided by a responsible relative, who’s a parent of a minor child, or from a spouse.  They also provide protective supervision, which is for people who have different cognitive impairments or need services up to a cap.  The way that it works is the federal program pays for a portion of it.  The state program picks up the rest to the cap.  Also, for people who are severely disabled, we provide advanced pay so that people have continuous care.  If there’s a problem with the provider, they have the ability to be able to make up.


The proposal is to eliminate the In-Home Supportive Services’ Residual Program.  Essentially, for folks who are served by that program, some would be able to continue receiving services if they get a new provider:  a nonresponsible relative provider.  For people who receive protective supervision, that would no longer be a covered service.  And for people who receive advanced pay, they would have to switch to the program where they cease to receive advanced pay and receive the regular reimbursement.  


So, essentially, that’s the proposal as we understand it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you for that.


What it means is either economic disaster—risk of not having the service available—and families needing to institutionalize (as in the case of Ms. Jung’s husband potentially) if, in fact, there was a long-term care facility that could provide the needs and if, in fact, there was a means of paying for that, which, in many cases, there is not.  In the end it means compromised quality of patient care, and it means greater stress and burden financially and emotionally on these families.  And it’s our job to get direction and advice on how to avoid those disasters.


With that, I allow my colleagues an opportunity to ask pointed questions, or if there are comments from the panelists to guide us, this is the time.


Senator Alarcón.


SENATOR ALARCÓN:  Well, as you go through these documents and you hear the stories, the real human issues that are brought to bear, it’s hard to even believe that anybody would put their name on these kinds of proposals.  How dare you get sick?  How dare you that you did not have the money to pay for the high costs of medical care?  You know, it’s almost as if, if people are sick, aged, or infirmed, you don’t belong in our society.  As a history teacher, I don’t like the sound of that because I think California has always stood for embracing weakness in our society or people who find themselves in weakened conditions and use that to build a stronger California by giving, not by taking.  This is penny-wise and pound-foolish.  There’s no question about it.


Senator Vincent and I were also saying the audacity of Ms. Arduin not having the guts to be here is insulting.  You know, they can traipse around all over California speaking in malls and in car dealerships, but this is where the real people of California are.  Where is the Governor?  Where is his representative?  And you can’t tell me that there isn’t one person in the Administration who could not be here today; that there isn’t one person in the Administration in Los Angeles today.  This is an insult, and I think we need to hold Donna Arduin to task.  I’ve made some tough decisions in my career as a city councilman and even as State Senator, but I can’t make those cuts and not face the public that I’m having to take from.  It’s a person of small stature that does that.


And so, we have a lot of work to do.  This is a beginning in the process.  Again, when you consider that the total cuts being proposed in 2004/2005—     $1.8 billion—and then $762 million in 2003/2004, that’s $2.5 billion or so.  If we tax the top 2 percent a thousand dollars a year, we would generate $3.5 billion, and we could take care of this whole problem—and more.  If we taxed alcohol, as Senator Romero is proposing—a nickel a drink—it’s not going to stop one person in California from buying another drink if they have to.  It would cover the entire cost that we’re talking about.  If we taxed tobacco, it would cover the entire cost we are talking about here.  


So, we need to get real about California’s future, and getting real is not ignoring those who have needs but, in fact, embracing them and helping them and showing that California is a compassionate state, not a uncompassionate state like maybe in Florida.  But Ms. Arduin needs to be held accountable.  We need to bring her in here to explain why, and if she doesn’t have the guts to do it, maybe we need to have the hearing in her neighborhood, wherever that is.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You know what?  As much as I appreciate the commentary—trust me—I’m going to really try to keep this to be the policy body that it should be.  I respect and honor and appreciate Senator Alarcón’s comments, but we can’t conduct a hearing with people shouting from the audience.  That’s the only thing I ask you to please refrain from doing, as much as I may agree with your comments, quite frankly.


Let me now extend an opportunity to those of you on the panel who’ve told us your stories—and I don’t expect that you have the answers because, quite frankly, we are struggling through them—but whether there’s any kind of insight and direction you can give us on how to preserve the core programs and streamline or make them work more efficiently.


You may begin.


MS. HAWKS:  Action to suggest a state plan amendment to allow more services to be covered with federal match.  If we do this at 50 percent of the 74,000 cases, we save $200 million from the proposed cuts and could bring in $2 million, if it’s a 2 to 1 federal match for every dollar spent, like Assemblywoman Chu mentioned.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think that’s really important.  It’s actually one of the things I think we’re all looking at.  It’s what is known as a federal waiver where we have to ask the federal government to allow us to do something different than they’ve told us we can do with their dollars.  Ideally on a bipartisan manner, certainly I think our Governor may have some opportunity with the new Administration on a federal level to achieve that, but that is part of that process where we need to ask the federal government to do exactly what you suggested.  So, thank you for affirming what we think needs to be done.  I believe there’s a process where we’re seeking the waiver.  If we need to do a resolution to Congress or we need to ask our Administration to seek that, then we should assure the public that that is what we’re doing.  Let’s find a way to do that; at least give you an update on where we are on that.  Thank you so much.


Others on the panel, any other comments?


Thank you.  I do appreciate the love you show for your families and the fear that you’re living with today.  Thank you.


I apologize.  We do have other staff here that I neglected to invite to the podium that are with us today.  Is Ms. Rogers here?  Please come forward.  You are part of our committee staff, and I apologize.  I just saw you in the audience, so you should join us should you desire.


We do have a representative from Assemblymember Mark Ridley-Thomas’ office who’s here:  JiWon Hong.  Where are you, Ms. Hong?  You’re welcome to join us at the podium, if you’d like as well, with staff.


I want to stay on time because I think there’s a lot of valuable information.  I’d like to call forward the third panel who will talk about the Governor’s proposal to do away with respite services for families who care for disabled family members who are regional center clients.  I’m going to read their names and share my comments as they’re coming forward.  There are two parents:  Ms. Sherlene Allen and Blanca Siebels.  If you would come forward please.


For those of you who are in the public that need to have some background on this proposal, again, this is the Governor’s proposal that will do away with respite services for families who care for a disabled family member who is a regional center client.  Under the Governor’s proposal on January 1, a little over two weeks from now, the Governor’s proposed to eliminate all regional center services related to respite care, social and recreational activities, and nonmedical therapy programs.  Under this proposal, we would also be eliminating such things as counseling, socialization training, various therapy, including art therapy as well as music therapy.  


Today we’re asking the panel participants to please focus your remarks respite care.  What value does it bring to you and your families?  And tell us what your lives would be like without respite care.  


Once again, Sherlene Allen has two children who are regional center clients.  And Ms. Siebels has a four-year-old who does have a disability and another child whose development has been fairly typical.  The panel may be joined today by a third person who cares for an adult member who is disabled.  Is that not . . .  Well, we’ll leave an opportunity open for that.


Welcome.  Whomever chooses to go first, please identify yourself.


MS. SHERLENE ALLEN:  Thank you.  Thank you for being here today and providing us this opportunity to help you understand the significant importance of the ramifications of Governor Schwarzenegger’s proposed elimination of noncore services.


My name is Sherlene Allen.  As you said, I’m the mother of three young boys, ages 8, 5, and 4.  The younger two have a diagnosis of Autism Spectrum Disorder.  I’m also a member of the California Autism Coalition—a coalition of organizations that represent, support, and advocate for families with autism spectrum disorders.  I’m sorry—individuals and their families.


Let me try to explain what the elimination of respite would mean for my three children and for my family.  My husband and I work full time like so many other families, and with our work schedules and therapy schedules, we are often not at home at the same time.  Without respite, I would be unable to spend individual time with each of my children.  As a parent of a child with a developmental disability, regardless of the child’s age, therapy time is never over.  We are constantly on the lookout for those teaching moments to expand and help our children generalize their skills.  The individual time my husband and I spend with each of our children is vital to continuing to help them build the skills that they learn and develop in the therapies that they do attend.  


Without respite, I would not be able to spend time with my older son.  His life is incredibly stressful having two younger brothers who he’s always on the alert for.  He never knows when one of them is going to attack him or have a meltdown that he may have inadvertently caused.  Spending individual time with him reinforces what a great kid he is and it’s not his fault that his brothers are the way they are.


Without respite, I would be unable to attend the support group meetings that I attend that give me the inner strength to continue on, to exchange strategies with other parents about what works and doesn’t work for them, and to provide me invaluable information that helps my husband and I become better advocates for our children.


Without respite, I would be unable to run errands or keep the house somewhat straightened up or wash and put away the boys’ clothes without a constant, constant battle.  I mean constant; it never lets up.  Having two children with autism I feel like I get a double-whammy.  We want our children with autism to be included with typical children so they can learn to model the appropriate behaviors.  Well, my two often model each other’s behaviors, and not usually the good ones, and I feel that I have to work twice as hard to correct them.  I need the help that respite provides me to keep up that constant level of supervision, education, and correction.


Also without respite, my husband and I would not be able to spend time together, recharge our batteries, and help each other stay focused on those issues that we do have control over.


I’m extremely concerned about what I perceive as an attack on my family.  The budget crisis of the last two years and the documented epidemic of autism in our state has already drastically reduced the services available to assist my husband and I to keep our boys at home.  We have had to become almost professional advocates in order to obtain the most basic of services for our children, and now we are confronting the elimination of respite and the implementation of a parental deductible for services?  We will have to look at what we are able to provide for our children and make hard choices as to which child will be able to get which service.  How can I choose which of my sons will get the therapies that will help him progress and sacrifice the progress of the other?  At what point do I decide that out-of-home placement is the best setting for either of them in order to gain access to the services that I cannot provide?


There are families that are already at that breaking point now.  This year there have been three attempted double-suicides where a parent killed their child with autism and then attempted to kill themselves.  Two of these were successful.  Fortunately, one was not.  How many more families will be pushed over the edge before California’s commitment to its most vulnerable citizens is properly supported?


When you make a choice to do something, you also make a choice not to do something else.  If the Governor has made the choice to suspend the Lanterman Act and to cut these perceived noncore services, I believe that he has made a choice not to help my children.  He has chosen my children and thousands like them to be the calculated casualties of this fiscal war.  


I urge you to be my children’s action hero.  Please keep them in the forefront of your thought process as you consider the choices you’re going to be asked to make.  They are not a line item.  They are not a file number.  Each of them is a citizen of this great state.  Please continue to honor and support California’s promise to them.  Their future depends on you.


Thank you very much.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much.


MS. BLANCA SIEBELS:  Thank you, committee, for being here this afternoon and being willing to listen to our side of the stories.


This is my son, James.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Could you please remind us all what your name is?


MS. SIEBELS:  My name is Blanca Siebels.  I am a proud mom of two-and-a-half children.  My five-year-old daughter, Alison, is typically developing, and my four-year-old son, James, has autism.  James was diagnosed with autism by the regional center at nineteen months old, which is pretty early.  Now it’s more normal to have that diagnosis early on.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  The eighteenth month is really the ideal period in which to be diagnosed.


MS. SIEBELS:  Exactly.  And this pretty much reflects James and our family those first eighteen months.  He was just really frustrated with life, and we were really frustrated with him.  Six months later, this is what he looked like, with about six months of therapy and early intervention.  And I am really proud to show that this is his four-year-old picture at school.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  There is a smile there.


MS. SIEBELS:  There is a difference as far as early intervention goes.  I’m very proud and a strong advocate for that.


But I’m here to speak about respite.  I can’t tell you how difficult it is to experience the first year after you receive the diagnosis of autism.  My daughter was beginning to crawl and walk around when James was born.  There’s a lot of stresses having two children so close together.  And it was our doing.  It was our choosing to have those two children like that.  But after James was diagnosed, that first year was very nebulous, very trying, and there was just a lot of chaos at home trying to put all the pegs together, trying to figure out the system, trying to figure out what our new life was going to be like; grieving the hopes and the dreams that especially my husband had for his son:  Will he ever play ball with his son?  Those kinds of things are all going on at that time.


Our Governor is proposing to eliminate all nonmedically necessary respite for families with special needs children, but my question is:  What is medically necessary?  Human beings are not just physical, medically oriented beings.  I believe most professionals in the medical field would agree that you cannot separate the emotional element of an individual’s whole person and wellbeing.  Ignoring or not attending to the emotional needs of a person could lead to medical consequences such as depression.  It is a short-sighted solution that could create more medical expenses in the long run.  


Also, how can a physically exhausted parent effectively raise healthy, well-rounded children?  We are a single-income middle-class family.  My husband has been a loyal California state employee for fourteen years.  We have my daughter, Alison, and James, and we have worked extremely hard to partner with our regional center, with our school district, with our HMO through AB 88, to help develop a cohesive forty-hour-a-week program for James, and that takes a lot of energy and a lot of effort on our part, and a lot of this work is done in the middle of the night when the kids are asleep and the house is quiet.  That’s how I learned about AB 88.  That’s how I learned about my rights and what our responsibilities were—in the middle of the night staying up.  So, you have an exhausted mom and an exhausted dad trying to care for these two children.


We do not have family living close to us who could perhaps help us out once in a while.  Our friends offer to help, but because James takes special attention, we are very careful not to overstay our welcome.  Resources at home can be very tight.  The respite program offered through the regional center allows both physical and emotional restoration for myself and my husband for a brief period of time.  Mr. Moses, in the first panel, had alluded to the drastic divorce rate among special-needs families.  I could truly tell you that my husband and I could be one of those casualties today had it not been for the counseling services and the respite program that allowed us to pay for the care for my son while we were going through the counseling.  It has helped restore our marriage and stay connected and cope with the stresses of balancing a complete therapy program for James and providing a sense of normalcy for my daughter, Alison.  


To this day I cannot take James and Alison to the park by myself.  James is not really aware of the streets, and my daughter, being the normal girl that she is, is playing out on the monkey bars while James is running to the street, and then I’m caught in this dilemma:  Do I go save my son or do I just admire my daughter trying to show off on the monkey bars?  


It helps me run a couple of errands I simply could not get done if I took James.  What I’d like to say about that is that my son has a problem with aggressive behavior.  He pinches and he bites which, at some point, is typical for autistic children.  I can’t take him to the grocery store because I will strap him in the seat and he will just grab whoever is walking alongside us and just go for them.  I can’t even get the staples that I need for my house, even if it’s just to run for three or four things at the store.  


It has also allowed me the simple pleasure of closing my eyes for a few minutes in the car and listening to the birds sing on occasion.  Forget about even trying to have exercise or do a diet thing for me or anything.  Forget that.  Just being able to close my eyes and have quiet for a few minutes has been very valuable to me.


When you’re on airplane, what do the flight attendants tell you to do if the airplane begins decompressing?  You are told to put the oxygen mask on yourself, the parent, first, and then you put the mask on your child.  The parent needs to be coherent in order to help the child.  The respite program is the oxygen mask for my family.


I don’t know how the other twenty regional centers administer their respite programs since they each manage their own resources independently, but I believe that my specific regional center offers a paramount program for families’ wellbeing at a very cost-effective rate.  I would invite the legislators to ask the proactive regional centers to see how they come up with specific alternative ways to provide this paramount care for their families.


My husband and I did not choose to be parents of a special-needs child, but I can honestly share that most days I find joy in this special journey and that most days I would not trade what I do.  And I believe that I can say this, in large part, because of the support provided to my son and our family through the regional center services and school district programs and to me specifically through its respite program.  I don’t have a high income, a six-figure income, that would pay for a nanny, that would pay for all these other extra nice things, but I would invite anybody who wants to, to come and observe what our day is like, trying to juggle and struggle with the stresses of daily living with us.


I thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you for both of your stories.


We’re at risk of running over, but I’m going to allow my colleagues to ask questions.  I know I have one question, but let me extend the opportunity to my colleagues first.  I’ll extend the opportunity to you both if there’s some recommendations, again, to help guide us through this process.


Assemblymember Chu.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER CHU:  Well, I just have to note, I see in our report a very startling fact.  Not only is there the humanitarian aspect of keeping your families together with the respite care, but there is a cost factor as well, which is that the average cost for respite services per consumer is $2,658 per year, and yet, if we just have only 10 percent of a client’s using respite care moving their children to residential facilities, with just 10 percent of those it would jump to about $20,000 per year, per client.  So, I think this is a true cost savings for us and the best way for us to go with regard to taking care of special-needs children.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Absolutely.  We’re struggling.  I mean, we don’t see the savings in eliminating respite care.  


Let me suggest there’s a double-whammy in many respects, or maybe even beyond double, for families with autism and/or some of the other developmental disabilities in their children, in that not only do you face the risk of a door shutting in January with basically the caps on caseload or families coming into the program until someone moves out, but statistics show there’s an increase, particularly, in developmental disabilities and developmentally delayed as well as autism.  We look back and we see the rates are increasing; they’re not declining.  Not only will people be shut out or put on a waiting list to even be eligible for the services, the other piece of that, as you’re sharing with us today, is the respite services to the families that allow you to care for your children so that they flourish to their full potential—whatever that may be for children with unique needs—but as well as keeping your family together, allowing you to keep your child at home when many families ultimately say, “Institutionalization is the only option,” given the breakdown in many respects of families and your economics of it, if indeed, again, those settings were available, which isn’t an ideal solution for children or many people in these programs.  So, there are two risks that you face under the proposals here, if not more.


Let me ask.  As an alternative to the Governor’s proposal in terms of the reductions, some people have suggested that clients and their families be given a self-determination account:  a lump sum that says, Here’s your account and you determine which services up to that account’s exhaustion, and letting the client know at the beginning of the year, Here’s your budget to purchase whatever services within these parameters.  


Do either of you have any experience with this self-determination account concept or actual implementation?  Is it one of the things that we should be looking at as a way to preserve the services in lieu of an absolute cap or elimination of the respite services?  Any thoughts on that?


Either of you.  Both of you.  Please.


MS. SIEBELS:  I hope I’m understanding your question correctly.  If it’s the respite, I think that there are regional centers who not only do the agencies but they do reimbursement.  I think that you could look at those kinds of options and see what some of the regional centers who are being more proactive with their funds, what they are doing, because I think that there are some who are really trying to do the best with what they have.


But I also feel that as far as giving us a lump sum for the services that we might need for our children, I think that there would have to be some kind of education on, I don’t know, the regional center’s part or the state’s part to really tell us what some of these providers are charging because we wouldn’t know.  There could be an opportunity for some of these providers with less ethics than others to try and take advantage of the families.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, I think what I’m hearing you saying is as long as we assure that there’s a quality in those respite services that may or may not be available in an open market; and two, educate the consumer and the families on how to make best decisions; and three, we have no idea what that lump sum could or should be.  But we have to look at all options.


MS. SIEBELS:  Yes, the options.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But I appreciate it because, obviously, education of families and consumers actually is another cost item that we’d have to factor in, saying, We need to educate and we need to regulate those out there providing the services, and that might cost us more than actually providing the services, as we’re doing now.


MS. SIEBELS:  And then each person with a disability has very special and unique needs, even within the autism spectrum.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And that’s the challenge.  There is no uniformity by region or by need.  


Thank you.


Please, any insight and direction you can provide us.


MS. ALLEN:  The only other thing I would like to add to that would be that parents currently do work as junior case managers; as I said in my testimony, becoming a junior, almost professional advocate so that I understand the options that are out there for my children.  The Legislature just increased the ratio to 1 to 66 in nonemergency times for case managers.  I fought to get my two children with one case manager, so it makes it a little bit easier.  When she returns one phone call, it’s a two for one kind of thing.  We go over two cases, and then she can go back to the other sixty-four.  


In the self-determination model that you are suggesting—and I think we need to be looking at all alternatives—more parent education is definitely needed as well as more control.  My middle son is in kindergarten, General Ed kindergarten, with a full-time aid, as well as an aid in the before- and after-school program.  I have repeatedly asked for a copy of the authorization for that aide’s hours so that I could help that aide understand and help the after-school environment understand where best to put this gentleman’s services for my child and which timing that he acts out and things.  I have been unable to do that.  And it’s not that I want to control the situation.  I just want to be a better participant and a better team player.  As it says in this book, “Parents’ roles in their children’s lives need to be respected and fostered,” and I think that what you’re proposing is definitely in light with the philosophical views of this.  As well, I may not know the lingo, the proper lingo, but I know when my kid is acting out or not acting out.  I can tell the professionals—psychologists, psychiatrists, OT—my language and then they can help me create that right professional program to help them.


The second suggestion is people have been telling me and I’ve been saying since I could understand some of these words is about supplanting.  Stop the supplanting.  We do get some federal money, and as you said, we need to be expanding that—what we can put on the waiver so it covers other things—but darn it, when it gets here, let’s put it where it needs to be going.  We need to be putting it where my kids are, both in the education system, because it’s happening there, as well as here in the developmental disabilities community.


Thank you for asking.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  Excellent advice.  We will forward these to the Administration as well as us taking the lead.  I know Senator Romero has a question, but let me just ask, do you live in L.A. County?


MS. ALLEN:  Yes, I do.  I live in Santa Clarita.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s see if we can find a way to help through your representatives’ offices to get the answers you are entitled to, quite frankly, and if we can facilitate that by whomever’s district is Santa Clarita.


MS. ALLEN:  Assemblyman Keith Richman.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Who’s your Senator?


MS. ALLEN:  McKnight.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’re happy to help you as well.


MS. ALLEN:  I’ll talk to Keith and see what I can do.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  If you want, we can facilitate it—my staff—and we’ll try to facilitate from your school or whomever it is you’re not getting answers from, if you want to leave that information with us.


MS. ALLEN:  Thank you so much.


Senator Romero, questions for the panel.


SENATOR ROMERO:  Again, too, as the Assemblywoman had pointed out, it’s also a cost issue when you take a look at the savings and the costs.  And what strikes me, too, in this committee analysis is that we’re talking about 70 percent of all individuals with family members with developmental disabilities do live at home, and that typically means then it’s a family member who provides the service.  So, in terms of looking at the big picture, we’re talking about 70 percent of individuals who might otherwise back off and say, You know what then, State?  We’re going over here.  And so, it seems that given just that breakdown—and actually, I was really surprised to see that’s two-thirds—that this makes it all the more important why we’ve got to have that ounce of prevention for the cure.  


I would just be curious if you could, as family members, help us understand what goes through the mind of, perhaps, parents who are faced with that decision so that we can take back that human question, that dilemma, that probably all of you may face when having to make the decision:  Do I care for my child at home or do I have my child here in a particular facility?  How do we understand what goes through your mind so that we can also understand why it is so important for us to provide the respite that is needed for parents to maintain the family bond?


MS. ALLEN:  I hope that I never have to answer that question with how I wrestled with that decision.  I genuinely do.  I can say, though, that there have been several parents, as I testified, that. . . . a double-suicide.  The failure that they have to feel that they weren’t able to provide for their children and that their community—as people say, it takes a village to raise a child—that their community wasn’t able to help them raise their child.  For those people, it was more than they could handle, and I genuinely hope that there are no more attempts like this and that somehow or another we can reach out to them and help them.  


And you were quoting the numbers.  If you look at DDS’s report from earlier this year, the number of out-of-home placements has gone down tremendously in comparison to the autism explosion.  That right there has to be a phenomenal cost savings.  While I’m good at numbers, I don’t have that number, but over the years, the numbers in out-of-home placement has gone down, and the amount of money that that has saved has to be addressed to Ms. Arduin so that she understands the ramifications.  As somebody said earlier, it’s a penny balancing a dollar.  It’s not going to save money in the long run, and the families and the children are going to be much worse off.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, both.


MS. SIEBELS:  I just was going to say very quickly . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Please do.


MS. SIEBELS:  . . . that even my service coordinator has said, “You don’t want to get to the point where you think about placing James somewhere else,” but there have been times when the situation has been so drastic.  My daughter and James are very close—as far as physically they’re both at the same height—and there are times when Alison doesn’t move fast enough and James just goes for her.  All throughout my experience with our kids, I’ve always taught Alison, you know, there are times when I just want to give James away, right?  I need to allow her to feel that.  There was one time when James went for her.  He was having a bad time, and I’d been drilling this into her mind—“We’re a family; we don’t lose one another; we stay together because we’re a family”—and I said, “Okay, Alison, why don’t we give James away?”  I was expecting the answer that I’ve been teaching her, and she said, “I love him.”  I had never taught her to say that.  So, there’s a fear, there’s a very real fear, of losing that child and feeling like I was not a good enough parent for that child.  You do everything you can to prevent that, but there is fear.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, both, for sharing that.


We are about fifteen minutes behind schedule, and I do want to allow time for public comment at the end, so I’m going to ask those that are coming forward to try to determine whether they can reduce their comments.


Let me now call our final panel of Medi-Cal providers forward.  I think you know who you are.


During the past summer when we were balancing this budget—and it was a very, very painful year, and we did things that many of us, again, throughout our careers vowed never to do—one of the things we did was, in fact, to approve a 5 percent reduction in Medi-Cal provider rates and spared some of the categories.  And that was instead of doing a 15 percent cut, as was proposed.


The Governor now has proposed an additional 10 percent.  It is not unlike what Governor Davis had proposed and we, the Legislature, fought back against.  But the proposal is to do the additional 10 percent in Medi-Cal rate cuts to take effect for three years, starting on January 1 of ’04.  And these are mid-year cuts.  Again, these are not next budget-year cuts.  So, I’m going to ask those who are coming forward to comment on this proposal.  I think we know the answer:  We’ve already harmed access by reducing those rates.  There are very few providers who are actually providing Medi-Cal, and by doing this, we are going to essentially, in many respects, eliminate health care for some communities and some consumers and some families in areas that we simply don’t have doctors who are providers who are doing Medi-Cal services.  But let’s hear from them.


We have, I believe, Dr. Daniel Higgins, who’s an emergency room physician and who is the president-elect of the Los Angeles County Medical Association.  I believe we have Dr. Terri Chavez, who is a physician serving in one of our higher need communities, meaning a lot of uninsured or very working poor families.  We have Michael Weinstein—good to see you, Michael—who is the president of the AIDS Healthcare Foundation and who operates Positive Healthcare.  And Philip Curtis from the AIDS Project of Los Angeles who operates a home health project as well as the APLA Dental Clinic.


Welcome to all of you.  Whomever chooses to go first, I’ll let you decide, but thank you for coming forward.


MR. MICHAEL WEINSTEIN:  I’d be happy to start.


AIDS Healthcare Foundation is the largest AIDS organization in the United States and the largest in California.  We operate 13 clinics in Los Angeles, San Francisco, Oakland, and San Bernardino County.  We have 6,500 outpatient clients, and we have 800 clients who are in Medi-Cal managed care.  In addition to that, we operate five specialty pharmacies which depend primarily on Medi-Cal for their earnings.  The proposed cuts in Medi-Cal provider rates are disastrous for the safety net providers.  California already has the lowest rates of reimbursement in the country in most categories and, in particular, in managed care.  The proposed cuts will make it impossible financially to operate, cutting out the entire margin that exists for these entities.


AIDS Healthcare Foundation, going back to last year, made a series of proposals for saving money without cutting services, and I think at this time of continuing budget crisis, we really have to look very, very seriously at those options.  The most important one, in my view, is drug pricing.  The State of California pays 15 percent more for drugs than the Veterans Administration pays in this state.  That represents a half a billion dollars a year.


SENATOR ROMERO:  And why is that?


MR. WEINSTEIN:  That is because we turned back legislation two years in a row that would have mandated it, and the VA, under 340-B, which is a federal program, has had greater negotiating leverage.  If the Legislature enacted the bill that we’ve twice put forward, saying that is the highest price, then that’s what we would pay.  Now, some of the pharmaceutical companies have threatened that they’ll stop selling to California.  I really believe that that’s a hollow threat.  But some of the people in the department have been nervous about putting this on that basis.


The other issue is many states are looking at reimportation.  Many states are looking at much more radical proposals.  I’ve always thought of California as the leader in these kind of efforts, and yet, there’s no significant effort being made in California to bring drug pricing down.  We will be sponsoring two more pieces of legislation this year.  Frankly, I hope that this committee will look more favorably upon those efforts in this time of crisis than it has previously.  You know, the influence of the pharma lobby is an awesome thing to behold, and I think we have to stand up to it strongly.


The other thing is that if we were not bold enough to take that step, we ought to be looking at therapeutic classes.  We shouldn’t have this huge formulary that we have—many copycat drugs.  We ought to be looking in areas where it will not have any impact on patient care to be limiting ourselves to generics and be limiting the cost through that method.  We ought to be looking at extending by a couple of days the time for fills, so instead of a 25-day fill, we give it a 27-day fill.  It may sound like a small detail, but it turns into tens of millions of dollars.  


And we ought to stop the fraud that’s involved in medications under     Medi-Cal.  We spearheaded an effort to cut back a drug called Serostim which really has no therapeutic benefit.  The State of California spent $45 million two years ago on that drug.  It will spend $7 million a year—this year—as a result of our efforts.  There are other such drugs which we can bring to your attention which could be cut back.  These can all preserve necessary services.


The second thing that we can do that would preserve services and save a lot of money is aggressively market specialized managed care programs for the chronically ill.  That is, look at doing what we’ve done with the two-plan model for the disabled.  We spend 70 percent of our expenditures in Medi-Cal on the disabled, and yet, they represent less than 30 percent of the enrollees.  I’m not suggesting making it mandatory, but what I’m saying is, if we said, okay, if there is a program for cerebral palsy (that’s a high-quality program) that’s willing to be capitated and be at risk for five or ten percent below the current costs, as we do in AIDS, that ought to be done.  If we did a wide-scale program of this kind, hundreds of millions of dollars could be saved there.


SENATOR ALARCÓN:  Mr. Weinstein?  Just to put this in perspective, under the Drug Assistance Program, 23,891 clients would be served on an ongoing basis.  The proposed cap would affect 116 clients per month (allegedly), resulting in a waiting list of 696 clients in the current year, and next year it would be 1,400 clients that would be added to the waiting list.


This is sort of like a circular argument:  If you can’t be serviced, then you die and you don’t need to provide that service.


MR. WEINSTEIN:  Oh, absolutely.  You would get sick enough to qualify for Medi-Cal, in which case the state would still be on the hook.


SENATOR ALARCÓN:  What is the status of AIDS?  Is it growing in our community?


MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes, it is.  Basically, the ADAP cap means that a person has to die for another person to get on.  That’s the exchange we’re talking about.  And it’ll drive up other costs as well.


SENATOR ALARCÓN:  But since they’re not getting sufficient drugs, they won’t have to get on the program.


MR. WEINSTEIN:  Well, what will normally happen is they wouldn’t necessarily die.  They would become Medi-Cal eligible.


SENATOR ALARCÓN:  I understand.  This does not deal with the whole epidemiological effects in terms of how the spread of the problem might be exacerbated.  


MR. WEINSTEIN:  Well, to the degree that people are not in care, and half of the people with HIV in this state are not in care at all, either because they don’t know it or because they’ve chosen not to accept care, but if the word goes out that there’s no drugs available, then obviously, fewer people are going to bother going to the doctor at all if they knew that they can’t get drugs.


SENATOR ALARCÓN:  The cuts in the AIDS program were particularly noticeable to me because all indications that I’ve seen are that AIDS is growing.  There’s a resurgence in AIDS.  In fact, we need to restore programs that have been changed in the past.  A lot more marketing is needed.  But again, everything in here seems to be penny-wise and pound-foolish.  This is horrible health policy.


MR. WEINSTEIN:  The point here again is that in a time of lean budgets, why were we spending two years ago $45 million on a drug that nobody thinks is useful?  And even today there are other drugs on that formulary that have a significant cost.  So yes, we need more federal money for that program.  We need more state money.  But I’m saying, let’s at least do the due diligence to make sure. 


SENATOR ALARCÓN:  You’re saying there are savings to be made if we did things smarter, like purchasing drugs cheaper, that wouldn’t have to cut out people from getting services.


MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes, and let me give you one other example.  We had the LAO do an analysis about special districts.  In L.A. County, there’s a hospital district that doesn’t operate a hospital.  They’re getting funding directly out of the tax stream in a community for a hospital and they don’t operate a hospital.  So, the LAO’s analysis was that $800 million could be put back in the General Fund through assessing the status of these special districts and putting this money back.  When I add up this list that I gave to you today of possible savings, it exceeds the $1.9 billion of proposed cuts.  


What I’m saying is that my frustration has been, frankly, on the legislative side as well as the Administration, that these types of suggestions have not been seriously dealt with either in the budget process or when we’ve put forward legislation, and I think that the situation is desperate enough now that we should and that the easiest thing to cut are the medical providers.


SENATOR ROMERO:  Can I ask what’s the status of that LAO report, and can you make sure you give us all a copy of it so we can find out about that?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me weigh in because I think that’s important.  We’ll make sure that we get that to the Members’ staff, please.


Senator Romero, do you have a final question?  We’ve exhausted the time for this panel, and we have three other speakers, and I think we need to move to the next speaker.


SENATOR ROMERO:  The $800 million—I’d like to look at that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Absolutely.  We’ll get that, and I appreciate your comments, Mr. Weinstein.


MR. WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Mr. Curtis, I’m going to ask you to hold off on your testimony, and I’m going to ask that Drs. Terri Johnson and Dr. Daniel Higgins to decide who’s going to speak next.  We’ve gone over time but this is valuable information and we do need to hear it, and then we’ll come back to you.


Welcome.


DR. DANIEL HIGGINS:  Thank you.  Thank you for having this hearing.


I’m Dr. Daniel Higgins.  I’m an emergency physician.  I worked over the weekend here.  I’m at St. Francis Medical Center.  We’re the busiest private medical center in Los Angeles County, seeing about 60,000 patients per year.  We’re the busiest private trauma center in L.A. County—1,500 major cases—and the busiest private base station.  We have about 50 percent Medi-Cal at our hospital, so I’d like to talk about Medi-Cal because cutting Medi-Cal, I believe, is going to have a harsh reality to emergency departments who are already overwhelmed, overfunded, and darn right dangerous right now.  If we don’t provide adequate reimbursement . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You meant “underfunded,” right?


DR. HIGGINS:  Underfunded, right.  I’m sorry.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Don’t say “overfunded” because that’s what they’re saying.  We know you’re underfunded.


DR. HIGGINS:  I had four hours of sleep last night because of the traumas.


If we don’t provide adequate funding and reimbursement to providers, they can’t afford to stay in business in the inner-city.  


To give you an example of how shamelessly we’re treating the physicians who are caring for our poor, if your grandma has diabetes and wants to go to the doctor for her diabetes, we pay the doctor $24.  If your dog has a hiccup and he goes to the veterinarian, they get $160.  To get a lung biopsy by a board-certified thoracic surgeon, it’s $72 Medi-Cal pays.  If you want a bikini wax, it’s $75.  And believe me, a board-certified thoracic surgeon is not doing your bikini wax.  If you want an appendectomy, which I called a surgeon in at three o’clock in the morning last night to come in, he got paid $400 for his appendectomy.  My dentist has quoted me $500 to have my teeth whitened.  Office visit for a patient with chest pains to a board-certified cardiologist is $68.  To change my transmission fluid and rotate my tires, it’s $95.  You can see why physicians in the inner-city can’t stay in business and they have to leave.  


When you cut rates to Medi-Cal providers, you can’t send them to the county because the majority of the care in this county is given by the private sector.  Fifty-four percent of all trauma care is in the private sector.  Ninety percent of all emergency pharma is in the private sector.  And like I said, we are overwhelmed and underfunded and we are just downright dangerous.  Ninety percent of emergency departments in this country are over capacity, and in the inner-city it’s a hundred percent.  We’re just over capacity.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And what are the implications if children are not able to enroll in Healthy Families?  Do you see a growth in more cases in your emergency rooms being used as your primary care?


DR. HIGGINS:  Absolutely.  There’ll be more patients, but there won’t be the doctors to take care of them.  Let me give you an example.  


In our area, in inner-city Los Angeles, 40 percent of our hospitals don’t have neurosurgeons.  If you show up at Downey Regional Medical Center or one of the other medical centers that doesn’t have a neurosurgeon and you have bleeding in your brain, there’s nobody to take care of them.  We don’t know how many don’t have orthopedics, don’t have ENTs, don’t have ophthalmologists, because those aren’t taken care of.  At St. Francis, we had two orthopedic surgeons; two orthopedic surgeons taking care of a million patients in our service area.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, that’s for every broken bone . . .


DR. HIGGINS:  We lost one last August and NPR is doing a story.  When they interviewed that orthopedic surgeon as to why he left the inner-city, he said, quote, “I can make a better living working here in Alabama,” end of quote.  What does that say about California?  What does that say about the people we’re treating in the inner-city?  Now we’re down to one orthopedic surgeon.  That one orthopedic surgeon operates every day; he operates every night; he operates every weekend.  I talked to him three times last night up until four o’clock in the morning talking about patients who needed care.  Why is it in Lynwood and the inner-city we have one orthopedic surgeon and less than ten miles away in Torrance they have 55 orthopedic surgeons?  Is it because the weather is better in Torrance?  No.  The reason is because we are underfunded.  We’re not paying the doctors to take care of the poor.  They frankly just can’t afford to do it anymore, and this further cut is going to be disastrous.  


Don’t send us patients to the emergency department.  We don’t want to see patients for primary care.  We are already overwhelmed.  We can’t do pap smears; we can’t do mammograms; we can’t do TB tests; we can’t do cholesterol checks; we can’t do blood pressure control; we can’t do glaucoma checks; we can’t do colon cancer.  We can’t do primary care.  What patients need is they need a doctor-patient relationship.  They need a primary care doctor.  They need care.  They should not be continuing to fall into the safety net which is already overwhelmed.


Finally, C. Everett Koop said, “Cultures can be judged in many ways, but eventually every nation and every age must be judged by this one test:  How did they treat people?”  By cutting funding to the poor, by cutting funding and eligibility to the poor, by cutting homecare, respite care, we are not treating people the way we should be treating people.  Cutting these services is counterproductive, as we heard here today.  It’s costly in the long run, and it’s morally unsound.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, not just for your testimony but your service, all of you.  We’re going to hear from everybody, but please stay here because I know there are questions.


Our next speaker is Dr. Terri Johnson-Chavez.  Welcome.


DR. TONI JOHNSON-CHAVEZ:  Hi.  It’s actually Toni Johnson-Chavez.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


DR. JOHNSON-CHAVEZ:  I’m Dr. Higgins’ counterpart.  I’m the pediatrician at St. Francis in Compton, California, and I serve right alongside with Dr. Dan Higgins.  This is Dr. Andriette Ward who also works with me in the Compton-Norwalk area. 


As Dan stated, I’ve already seen about 16 newborns at St. Francis today, which is the hospital that’s really been inundated with taking care of the poor.


I just want to thank you for having us here and all the people that are here.  I’ve been really concerned about the appalling disparity that’s affecting the patients in our area and the lack of sensitivity that I’m seeing with the trite response that We’ve got budget cuts, so there’s not much that we can do, in order to take of . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Trite response from . . . ?


DR. JOHNSON-CHAVEZ:  Actually, from everywhere you go.  Whether I’m talking to legislators or whatever, it’s The monies are being cut and all programs have to be cut.  I’m concerned because even in a flush economy, California, of course, was 48th or 49th in the nation.


To further elaborate on what Dr. Higgins was saying, the average Medi-Cal provider fee for service on the average is paid about $26.  What is really important to know under capitated Medicaid, which is about 85 percent of our providers in Los Angeles now and the two-plan model, those doctors, on the average, are capitated at 8 to 16 dollars, with an average of only $12.  And I need you to understand that that 8 to 12 dollars means no matter how many times you see the patient that month or how long the visit, you’ve been reimbursed 8 to 12 dollars.


I’ve given you a long list, but obviously. . . . and Andriette came today because she works three different locations and she has been incredibly shocked to see that the disparity even in Los Angeles is tremendous.


Back to the AIDS.  How are you going to take care of any significant illnesses?  You know in African American and Hispanic patient populations, almost 20 to 30 percent of our young babies now already, by the time they are reaching sixteen, are overweight with all the subsequent diabetes and hypertension.  We’ve got prostatic cancer.  You guys have been inundated with the statistics.  The problem is, though, we know the statistics but who are the people who are going to take care of the patients?  They’re the providers.  


I need you to realize three things.  We’ve maximized overuse of the emergency rooms.  You’re aware of the crisis that’s going on in Martin Luther King.  You’re aware of the public health clinics that have been closed.  So, now the medical homes have totally been taken away from us.  We’re up to taking care of having to review Medi-Cal benefits every quarter now, so as many as 20 percent of our constituents are put in a hold pattern where they don’t have access to the Medi-Cal cards, and when that happens, they’re back into the emergency room.


For me in the Compton area, the average visit is not ten minutes.  These children have learning disabilities, attention deficit—they’re more aggressive—so it requires, on the average, about 25 to 40 minutes to have any intervention, yet you’re paid $8.  Now you’re asking us to take a 10 percent drop.  In Compton for the last four years there has been only two board-certified pediatricians.  You know, I’m bringing people like Andriette Ward in, but how am I going to pay a physician in order to help me see those patients?  We’re seeing almost a hundred patients per day.  


I urge you, one, to really watch the cutbacks.  And I want to go back to something important, and it’s the redundancy that we’re going to have to watch.  Of that amount of money that’s flowing down, there needs to be a lot more fiscal responsibility to ensure that monies are appropriately passed down to the physicians.


In answer to the question, What’s going to happen with further cutbacks? unfortunately, we’re not going to be able to have the physicians that are already there.  We’ve already lost some specialists, and we have no more primary care doctors in the area.


Thank you. 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me just share with the speakers in the audience so that you know—no one on this panel has ever proposed a 10 percent cut, so your admonitions to us are warranted from your perspective but misplaced.  One.  Two, everybody on this panel has been someone who has supported through their votes and their battles in holding out on the budget last year on funding vulnerable populations.  Many of us are recipients of Medi-Cal.  I knew how hard it was for my mother to find a dentist through Medi-Cal the first time I saw a dentist at the age of 13, when half my teeth were rotted.  So, many of us here are your friends and allies, so just understand that. 


 And finally, they took a lot of pressure when I carried the bill to remove sodas out of the State of California schools, and I’m trying to deal with childhood obesity because I know the implications.  Our costs to our healthcare system are phenomenal.  It’s beyond comprehension when we look at these children who have Type II diabetes.  They will be on dialysis.  They will have heart disease.  They’ll have higher rates of cancer by the time they’re in their mid to late twenties.  Unfortunately, or maybe be design, these children happen to be poor, brown, African American, new immigrant Asian, poor white that the policies are impacting.  The health disparities in the State of California are horrendous, and we all are attempting to fight that battle.  


We have to understand that we have some tough decisions to make, and you’re telling us that we need to look at whatever component of medical fraud does indeed exist.  I happen to believe it’s not rampant.  I happen to believe that when the audit comes out—and I think we’re going to see one December 22nd—we’re not going to find the savings as many project is a half a billion or a billion dollars to save and put back into the program maintenance.  You’re the strongest voices we have but understand these are allies and friends on this panel.


DR. JOHNSON-CHAVEZ:  No, actually, you can help us with the oversight.  That’s what’s really going to be helpful.  I think a lot of us have ideas of where monies are unnecessarily spent.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Oversight requires administration, which is another cost—which I agree with you.


DR. JOHNSON-CHAVEZ:  But we already have ideas where the money is being overly spent.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well then, you know what?  Let’s do this.  Let’s bring you to Sacramento when we look at the Medi-Cal fraud oversight mechanism.  You’re absolutely right, and that’s the direction we need.  We know how to get a hold of you, but keep in touch with us.


We have another speaker here, and I hope it’s on the Medi-Cal reimbursement rate cuts.  I know you were scheduled to speak, so we’re going to have you speak next.  We’re already behind and then we have public comment, but we’ll come back to the fourth speaker that we didn’t have on our list but I’m happy to take testimony.  But let’s at least have our final speaker that was listed.


Welcome.


MR. PHIL CURTIS:  Thank you.


My name’s Phil Curtis.  I work for AIDS Project Los Angeles, and I could probably sum up my testimony in two words, which are sort of “me too.”  But, rather than go that route . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’ll give you a bit more time, but thank you.


MR. CURTIS:  AIDS Project Los Angeles is one of the largest AIDS service providers in the world with over 10,000 registered clients in Los Angeles County.  We operate a couple of programs that are reimbursed through Medi-Cal.


But before I go to those, I want to say something about AIDS services overall in the State of California, and that is that it has been a long twenty years, and over the past twenty years of this epidemic, a very fragile patchwork system of health care and service programs have built up to take care of people living with HIV and AIDS.  These Medi-Cal cuts and caps on programs, like the AIDS Drug Assistance Program, are the beginning of the end of that network of services that has supported this population over the past twenty years, and we shouldn’t allow it to happen.


If you want to know what it looks like in the end, go to Florida or ask Ms. Arduin to talk to you about Florida’s programs because that’s what you’ll end up getting.  And I’m from Florida, so I know.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Maybe you could share with us what happened in Florida in these programs under the Arduin model.


MR. CURTIS:  You can’t get services is what happens in Florida, and you can’t get Medi-Cal unless your income’s at SSI level.  They pay the federal rate, and that means it’s about 575 bucks a month.  So, if you’re my dad, who’s got a Social Security income in Florida of a thousand dollars a month, he can’t get Medicaid.  Not eligible for it.  That’s what it means.  So, no services.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  What happens to those families and those individuals and those people?  Where do they go?


MR. CURTIS:  They get sick and they end up in the hospital.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do they go to emergency rooms?


MR. CURTIS:  Sure.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How long have they seen the cost-benefit analysis and long-term mortality?


MR. CURTIS:  I can’t give you that.  That’s more depth than I have.


One of the programs that AIDS Project Los Angeles operates that is reimbursed through Medi-Cal is the Medi-Cal Waiver Home Health Program.  This is a program for the sickest of our patients.  These people must require skilled nursing levels of care in order to be eligible for the program.  This program is already experiencing difficulty in finding providers to provide the personnel to staff the services that this program provides, especially at the lower homemaker rates.  They have not had a rate increase for seven years.  They’re currently operating under the 5 percent provider rate cut that was mandated by the current California budget, and now, of course, the Governor is proposing an additional 10 percent rate cut.


This program saves two dollars for every dollar that it spends, and the way that it saves that money is by keeping these people at home, out of the hospital, out of nursing homes, and by increasing adherence to the HIV drug therapies that keep these people healthy and productive.  If we can’t find providers for this program because the pay rate is so low, then there’s only one place for these patients to turn, and that’s to the hospitals and the nursing homes which, in the end, will just cost the state more.


AIDS Project Los Angeles also operates one of the largest HIV-specific dental clinics in the country.  It’s here in Los Angeles, not far from downtown.  We serve over 2,000 clients a year.  We perform over 9,000 procedures a year.  As you know, last year during budget negotiations, then-Governor Davis and the Administration wanted to call a halt to all Medi-Cal adult dental care.  No services at all.  Community members along with the California Dental . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Excuse me.


MR. CURTIS:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can I ask the audience, if they need to have a conversation to please go outside?  Many of them have worked all night.  They’ve been waiting patiently, and I’d like to at least respect their testimony.


I’m sorry to interrupt you.


MR. CURTIS:  That’s all right.  Thanks.


Ultimately, the Legislature worked with the community and with the California Dental Association to cut back some Medi-Cal-funded dental services but not to curtail services altogether, as you know.  So, I asked the dental program people just what some of those cuts have amounted to.  Cleaning—and there’s only one allowed per year now under the current budget—cleaning is now reimbursed at the rate of 40 bucks.  It would go down, obviously, by another four dollars if there’s a 10 percent rate cut.  Oral exams have been limited to one initial exam per dentist, per office.  Adult cleanings, one a year instead of two.  We no longer provide porcelain crowns except on front teeth.  If you need a crown on your rear teeth or on molars, you get a steel crown.  Deep cleaning has been cut from $200 to $118.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And deep cleaning is . . . ?


MR. CURTIS:  Deep cleaning is root planing, which is . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Like gingivitis and root disease.


MR. CURTIS:  Exactly.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  If someone’s a diabetic and they’re at risk of. . . . I mean, they could essentially die if they don’t have this kind of cleaning.


MR. CURTIS:  Or if they’re a poor person with HIV who has not seen a dentist in many, many years.  A lot of our patients require that kind of care.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It may be life-threatening by not having deep cleaning.


MR. CURTIS:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Please continue.


MR. CURTIS:  Also, HIV and dental care has a long and unhappy history.  There’s been a history of discrimination of an inability of people with HIV to find dental providers to do this very specialized kind of care, and there is no enhanced rate under Medi-Cal for this kind of complicated dental care.  Often, oral health providers are the first to spot HIV-related opportunistic infections like Kaposi’s sarcoma in the mouth or oral esophageal thrush that other doctors won’t spot.  And so, there’s an association between good oral health and good health outcomes.


If these rate cuts are passed, what this will do to our clinic is simply force more providers out of the business, force more clients to AIDS Project Los Angeles, and we already augment the funding that we get from Medi-Cal with general funds to pay for this type of dental care.  


Once again, I want to repeat what everyone else has said, that these cuts along with the cap in the ADAP program are penny-wise and pound-foolish.  You can cap enrollment but you can’t cap healthcare needs.  These people are going to get the health care they need somewhere, whether it’s in an emergency room or a county hospital or a nursing home.  They’re going to get it somewhere, and we’re going to pay for it.


Thank you very much.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you for the reminder.  I mean, we know this but we need to say it over and over, and we hope it will fall on ears that will work with us to find alternatives.  But we need you to say it as often as possible, and I thank you.


MR. CURTIS:  Thanks for taking the time.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Questions from my colleagues?  Comments?


We have gone over a bit of time.  We had wanted to allow some time for public comment and be out of here by three o’clock because I have a flight back to Sacramento.  I know there’s a lot of the public that wants to comment, so come forward.  Let me ask you to please be prepared to line up and do so.  Honor and respect those persons who are in wheelchairs.  For those who cannot come forward who want to comment, my staff is somewhere with a microphone to be able to come to you if it’s easier, if you’re in a wheelchair or you can’t access the ramp easily.  I will be leaving in forty-five minutes, so to the degree the speakers can limit their comments to two or three minutes, please try not to be repetitive.  Just say “me too” with the last speaker.


Let me ask my colleague if he has any questions, and let me ask Dr. Ward if she wants to make a brief comment before we go to public comment.


DR. ANDRIETTE WARD:  Thank you.


My name is Andriette Ward.  I’m also a pediatrician, and I’ve had the experience of working in a number of different settings in the greater Los Angeles area, from Thousand Oaks, where we have a more affluent population, to community clinics in downtown Los Angeles where we have a high Latino population, and now, currently, I’m working in Compton.  


I cannot emphasize enough the differences in the kind of care that’s required by our patients in Compton than in any other place and what a disservice it would be to continue to make cuts in the population that needs our care the most.  I know you’re very sensitive to these because I heard you speak at an APHA meeting about a month ago.  


But just in my personal experience, the issues associated with providing care are complicated by three major areas.  One is our kids—and all over but specifically in Compton—have chronic medical conditions.  They’re not kids coming in with colds.  They’re coming in with asthma, obesity, Type II diabetes, and high blood pressure.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Rotten teeth.


DR. WARD:  Oh, very, very much so rotten teeth by now.  And to consider even making cuts at this point would really be doing them a disservice and society as a whole a disservice because that expense is going to be paid later on when they’re doing the dialysis in their twenties as opposed to having a job and working.  They’ll be on disability at that point.


The complications are compounded by the fact that—and I’m not sure if this is something unique to Compton, but I see it in our practice quite a bit—that a disproportionate number of the children we’re seeing there are not being cared for by their birth parents.  They’re in foster care or with an extended family member.  So, we as the primary care providers are the ones that provide the continuity of care.  We’re the ones who know what happened with their health care a year ago, two years ago, and if we continue to make the cuts, we, as the healthcare providers, are not going to be able to provide that continuity of care.


And then it’s further compounded by the fact that our kids have a lot of psychosocial issues that need to be addressed because we don’t have the subspecialists available.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Right.  The counseling, the ADD/ADHD.


DR. WARD:  Counseling—and it’s done in our office setting.  So, to continue to make the cuts in a population that needs our services the most would be a tremendous disservice.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I appreciate that.  These are mid-year cuts, and we actually are attempting to convey a message, but there is the authority of the Governor to, in fact, make these cuts without legislative approval.  I don’t know how much control we have over these mid-year cuts, but they’re likely to be completed. . . . pardon me?  Well, mid-year.  We may find ourselves in a situation where we’re trying to get ahead of even the January proposed budget that the Governor’s staff is working on now and then the mid-year cuts that are being proposed.  


All of these are on point.  Our challenge is short of a new revenue       source. . . . I mean, the one thing that we agree on is what our fiscal shortfall will be.  The question is:  Where do we find that revenue that we do not have to do the very things we should have been doing?  Being more proactive for wellness objectives in health care comes with new money.  It doesn’t come with old money.  We’ve whittled programs down to the bone.  There is not a lot of innovation left, although we’re trying to eke that out right now.  It’s new money, or it’s eliminating tax credits, or it’s generating taxes on the very top end, as some have suggested.  We will not find $15 billion or $14 billion in the next six months, and we have to balance the budget.


So, the question is:  How do we find that?  And that’s a two-thirds vote, if there is even a desire or a will to go in that direction, which I think many of us on one side of the aisle have frequently done through either proposing a tobacco tax, an alcohol tax, fees, or reducing huge corporate tax loopholes to generate revenue.  In the end, we have to balance the budget with a two-thirds vote, and we can’t generate increased revenues without a two-thirds vote.


DR. JOHNSON-CHAVEZ:  Is there something we can do, Ms. Ortiz?  Is there something we can do further that would help?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You know, it’s really painful to say, but the average Californian believes they’re being taxed too much.  Their expectations of quality of life in California like we have are just very disconnected from their understanding of what it costs to run government well and to keep people healthy and to do the right thing for society.  


I think L.A.’s pretty good.  There are other parts of the state elsewhere that are challenged.  Maybe we’ll have you take your story to rural areas that have the same kinds of health disparities and don’t have developed clinic systems, that have the poor families who are at risk for all of the things we’re talking about, that have a different political perspective.  Maybe that’s the story we need to take and have people trust government again.  So, we will call upon you, trust me.  But thank you for doing what you do.  You’re in the trenches.  You’re providing for the communities that we’re trying to fight for, and thank you for being here and taking the time after a long night of work.  I know many of you have, so thank you.  


This is one you can give these guys a big round of applause.


How are we going to manage public comment here?  I’m going to ask people to quickly come forward that can to these microphones.  Three of you sit down at a time.  And if you can’t reach the mike, this individual will come to you—my staff—and I’m going to ask you all to be as quick as possible—make your points—so that we can absorb everybody here in the next thirty five minutes.  We’ll hop between this podium and then the people in the audience.


Please begin.


MS. CATHERINE ELLIS:  Good afternoon.  Thank you very much for your attention to all of our issues today.


I’m Catherine Ellis.  I’m a representative from Area Board 10 on developmental disabilities.  We provide advocacy services to the 60,000 people with developmental disabilities in L.A. County.


Briefly, I just wanted to answer some of your queries about self-determination.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


MS. ELLIS:  You are no doubt aware that we do have some pilot projects on self-determination here in this state which have proved to be extraordinarily successful in terms of satisfaction of families who are actually allowed to make their own decisions about how their service budget is spent.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How are pilots looking?  Have we measured them yet?


MS. ELLIS:  Pardon me?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How are the pilots operating in the self-determination models?  Are we seeing cost savings?  Are we seeing compromised quality of services?


MS. ELLIS:  To be frank, we’re not seeing huge cost savings yet.  There are start-up costs around implementing these programs, but I think ultimately the bottom line would be if people who are on the self-determination projects were given the opportunity to express how they would make the cuts in their lives.  They would be more than happy to make their own determinations where       these . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And you’re saying they don’t have that discretion now to make the decisions.


MS. ELLIS:  Well, absolutely not.  If the Administration is saying these are across-the-board cuts, we don’t have the opportunity to have input in what services we want.  I think the thing that we need to understand is that self-determination projects are not new.  There are self-determination projects all over the country and abroad that are very successfully operating.  They’re operating in a fiscally responsible way.  They are saving money.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m sorry, I’m going to have to ask you to wrap up because we’ve got a lot of people.  So, you’re saying they work or they don’t?


MS. ELLIS:  They absolutely do work.  The system becomes market-driven, so good services stay in business and bad ones don’t.


I just wanted to say that the LAO’s opinion on self-determination is available.  If your office doesn’t have it, I’ll make sure that you’re provided with it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We have it.  We’ve heard it.  I just wanted the public to weigh in on it.


Thank you so much.  I apologize, but we’ve got to get through a long list.


MS. ELLIS:  Yes, thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Next speaker.


MR. JAMES ADLER:  Thank you, Senator.


My name is James Adler.  I speak here today on behalf of the Los Angeles County Public Social Services Commission, a citizens advisory board whose members are appointed by the board of supervisors.


We’ve heard powerful testimony today of the devastation threatened by these cuts.  We’ve also heard that most, if not all, of the cuts are not cost-effective because the programs involved represent not only the most compassionate way of dealing with the problem but also the least expensive.


The most glaring example of this is the Governor’s proposed repeal of AB 231, recently enacted legislation designed to expand low-wage working families’ access to food stamps.  The Los Angeles County Public Social Services Commission unanimously endorsed this legislation in October and does so again today.  As with many of the Governor’s other proposed cuts, these cuts won’t help the deficit; they’ll just make it worse.  The Food Stamp Program is virtually 100 percent federally funded.  Even on paper the savings achieved are miniscule, and even these small savings disappear when you look at the realities of the program, for only the smallest administrative costs are borne by the state.  In exchange, the state receives over $1 billion of federal dollars per year that go not only directly to people who have food needs but also to our grocers, to the employees of the grocers, to distributors, farmers, markets, and each of these pay taxes; and so, the tax return to the government is actually greater than the cost.  Over the next eighteen months his proposals would save only an estimated $4.9 million while foreclosing approximately $300 million in federal benefits and $540 million in local activity.  


In short, the cuts proposed are neither fair nor smart nor even real.  Instead of cutting this program and impeding the implementation of AB 231, which seems to be going on now, the state should be moving forward to implement AB 231 fully on January 1, 2004, as required by law, and to promote food stamps vigorously in order to bring more money into the state.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can I ask you to summarize?  I really apologize.  I have a plane to catch.  I apologize, but please summarize.


MR. ADLER:  The Governor’s complained that not enough federal money is coming into the state, and here’s the program that brings it in with the most favorable match available.  So, we should expand this program, not kill it.


Thank you.


I also have a statement that I will provide to you from the Grocers Association which supports this bill.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  If you have written testimony, I will share it with all of my colleagues that couldn’t be here today, but thank you.  And we do have someone from the audience.  You may begin.  


MR. RANDY CORRIDAN[?]:  My name is Randy Corridan[?].  My wife, Kimberly, and I have our own home with the help of in-home support staff.  The cuts will take away our ability to have our own choices.  They will put us in a nursing home.  We will go in the street, not to an institution.  Save us.  Save us.  Save us.  Save us.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much.


Let’s take one more person that’s on a mike over here.  You may begin.


MR. BARRY BERGER:  Hi.  I want to thank you for the opportunity to speak.  


My name is Barry Berger.  I’m the president of a 23-year-old company called Accredited Home Health Services.  Accredited provides about 30,000 hours per month of respite care here in Los Angeles County.  We’ve been doing it for 23 years.  We provide care to over 600 consumers per month.


The elimination of respite care would literally destroy the lives of a lot of these people.  We also provide licensed respite care for those children that are on gastrostomy tubes and trachs, and so on and so forth.  The 10 percent reduction along with the 5 percent already on the books for January 1st is literally going to eliminate all providers of this level of care.  If you read the papers, we are fighting an incredible nursing shortage.  To try and tell these nurses, We’re cutting your rates by 10 percent, in addition to the increasing worker’s comp costs that we are facing—our worker’s comp has gone in the last three years from $30,000 a month to $110,000 a month.  We cannot afford any additional cuts in this respite care.


Additionally, by eliminating these programs and eliminating the cut in respite care, it’s going to eliminate the services to 600 consumers.  Additionally, 400 employees that work for us on a weekly basis will be out jobs.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  To the point, and we’re listening.


Next speaker?


MR. TERRY LEFTGOFF:  Good afternoon.


My name is Terry Leftgoff.  I’m a native Californian and a resident of Santa Barbara.  I’ve been living with HIV for twenty-one years.  That makes me a long-term survivor of AIDS.  I also serve on the board of Being Alive in Los Angeles.  I’m here to give a voice for many who cannot.


Were it not for medications, I wouldn’t be here today.  They’ve truly saved my life, and I’m enormously grateful.  Unfortunately, many have not been so fortunate.  As long as AIDS cannot be capped or wait-listed, please do not cap or wait-list access to lifesaving medications available through ADAP.  For the Governor to propose such a drastic action, not only is it heartless, but it’s also economically counterproductive and morally reprehensible.  Denying medications that keep people healthy and productive will, instead, cause even greater expense as people slip into compounded illness, fall out of the workforce, lose their insurance, and instead turn to more expensive hospital care.  It would be shameful for California, a national model, to fall to the level of a state like Mississippi with this kind of a program.  


There are more effective and humane ways of reducing this program cost if that’s truly the goal, as you asked about earlier.  One, rather than cap patient access, cap drug costs.  I urge the Governor and those of you in state government to use your considerable muscle and buying influence to force drug manufacturers to provide the state substantially discounted group ADAP pricing.  Long ago drug manufacturers made pledges that no one would go without if they couldn’t afford these medications.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m going to ask you to wrap up, but thank you.  You can conclude.


MR. LEFTGOFF:  I’ll conclude.  Two other points.  In the alternative, I would urge the state to look to importing from Canada for drugs.  That would immediately build in a savings yearly.  And thirdly, we should backstop ADAP by enacting legislation that prevents insurers from reducing benefits during the course of a covered illness to prevent insurers from shifting the burden to the public which has slowly been happening.  I’m lucky to have had continuous insurance.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Wrap up, please.


MR. LEFTGOFF:  My final thought is this to take to the Governor, please.  I take umbrage at the notion that this is waste.  We’re not waste.  We’re your sons and daughters, and we’re the assets of this state.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  I want you to make sure that you get my staff’s card.  We’re going to do a big hearing on the prescription drug and the reimportation issue in Sacramento.  We’re going to invite you back then.


MR. LEFTGOFF:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I want to deviate and allow someone in the audience who’s in a wheelchair to be able to get on the mike, and then we’ll come back to those that are up here on the panel.


I’m sorry to rush people, but we need to move along.


You may begin.


MR. RYAN DUNCANWOOD:  Hi.  My name is Ryan Duncanwood.  Please don’t cut services.  I love living on my own.  I’m a public speaker and I _________ both for work and for pleasure, mainly with my support staff who’s with me here today.  My _________ believe in the Lanterman Act.  We need our civil rights.  We won’t go down without a fight.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  We are listening.


One more, please.


MR. CECIL LINGRUM:  Hi.  My name is Cecil Lingrum.  I really quickly want to say two things.  One, without the Lanterman Act, I would not have been able to do half the things that I have been able to do in my life.  I work professionally, live on my own, and all the other stuff.  


I have a rhetorical question, but if there’s an answer, I would really like to hear it.  Whenever there is a budget crisis, why is it always the poor and the disabled that get cut first?  And where is the money going?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Excellent question.  We often ask the same.  But thank you for being here because some people think that you’re not powerful enough, but I think you’re pretty powerful today.


Thank you.


Who’s next here?


MR. BRAD LAND:  My name is Brad Land, and I am the HIV-positive 5th District Commissioner here in Los Angeles County, sitting on the Los Angeles County HIV/AIDS Commission.  I’m also Priority and Planning co-chair, and I’m a person that has lived with HIV/AIDS for twenty years—all my adult life.  It’s because of this AIDS Drug Assistance Program that I am here and able to plan and be a part of the process today.


I am very fearful of those people that will not be allowed access and will go onto a waiting list with regards to these medications that are so desperately needed for all of us.


In the eighties I turned my home into a hospice, and I was in my twenties.  I’ve buried my friends once, and I’m not looking forward to going into my forties to do the exact same thing again.  At some point in time we need our Legislature to draw the line.


And I want to thank you for coming down today.  I’m really sad that there aren’t Republicans here today as well.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


MS. CONNIE _________:  My name is Connie . . . [tape turned – portion of text missing] . . . was here before the Lanterman Act, and I can tell you what can happen.  I mean, my son had to go into a group home.  He didn’t go into an institution because my husband and I. . . . I decided not to work, and we decided to keep him in the community.  So, it is cost-effective.  The Lanterman Act is a cost-effective way and a humane way.


And I want to thank you so much for being so kind and respectful.  I’ve been in a million hearings, and it’s so hard for all of us.  I mean, I’ve done this.  You must have said a million times, I know how hard it is for you to have come here.  Parking.  Just finding the way.  And so, thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You’re welcome.


MS. __________:  Years ago Lowell Weicker told us when there was a dismantling of the Handicapped Act in Washington, he said, “Don’t worry, I’m here.”  And I get the feeling from you and your colleagues. . . . I mean, I wish the Governor’s people were here, and I wish there was a bipartisan showing of force, but I feel safer and hope that you will be there for us.  A lot of my disabled friends say to me, you know, “You’re just a TAB.”  And I said, “What’s a TAB?”  That’s “temporarily able-bodied.”  None of us are going to escape this, and I appreciate your comments about what your own personal history was.


Just two points that haven’t been brought up.  Not only is there a proposed cap, but we’ll lose our due process protections.  It’s almost outrageous.  I feel like I’m in a foreign country.  I lose my service and then I lose my right to protest.  


By the way, self-determination is fabulous.  People will get you the information.  I think it’s the way because, you know why?  There are so many layers.  I mean, you know this expression:  “Cut paper, not people.”  You have a million agencies looking at the same things, saying, Ah, this is a table, and then someone else comes back and You know what?  This is a table.  We know what we have and we know what we need.  And you know what?  No one’s talking about the job market.  People want to work with disabilities.  They’re the most wonderful people in the whole wide world.  And so, what we will do is we will lose programs and we will lose jobs.


And the last thing I want to say is this is about leadership.  You are all very brave to sit here and listen to this testimony.  I just want you to know that most of the people in the room do not have term limits.  We’re going to be around for the whole long haul, and we want to thank you for your leadership.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, thank you.  We’re listening and these people do care.  You should hear the agonizing process we go through, so thank you for respecting that.


Next speaker?  And then do we have others?  I’m going to leave in twenty minutes.  I apologize; I do have a plane to catch to go back to Sacramento.  But I want to allow people who are in a wheelchair to speak first.  I apologize.


MS: [UNIDENTIFIED]: Hi.  I’m speaking today on behalf of the quadriplegics.  I’m speaking on behalf of the Personal Assistance Services Council of Los Angeles County.  We’re appointed by the board of supervisors.  We’re the public authority to oversee the IHSS program for our 125,000 seniors and people with disabilities.  I’m going to be talking today about three populations and the IHSS Residual Program.


The elimination of the IHSS Residual Program could rob the most severely disabled individuals in this state on the Advanced Pay Program of their freedom to live in the community and would almost surely cost the state more soon after.  


The significantly disabled person on IHSS whose needs are so great require the maximum number of hours permitted under the law, which is now 283 hours, and they are often quadriplegic and many use ventilators.  Severely disabled people in the Advanced Pay population are unable to manage on the federal program because their care needs are so significant that they often need two and three providers and people who can be called in on short notice to provide fill-in care in a situation too dynamic to payroll with the static payment made to providers each month.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Miss?  Excuse me.  You do have written testimony, so I’m not going to allow you to read all of it.  I will share the written testimony, if you could just summarize in three more sentences.  I promise I will share your written testimony with others, but we simply do not have the time.  


Three major points.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  Okay.  The three major points is this situation:  For somebody who has so many care needs and so many providers and somebody who has to jump in on a moment’s notice, we have checks going to providers who are no longer working or they go to the wrong providers.  It’s hard enough to get somebody who will work on a steep learning curve to take care of someone on a ventilator.  This will paralyze the process of paying to the point that we won’t be able to find anybody.


And then, two other very important additional points in terms of family providers, spouse providers, and parent providers is that a pledge was made to these people—to parents of children with disabilities—in 1982, when we went for these federal PCSP funds, and they were promised that children would not be wrenched away from their parents and forced to be cared for by strangers.  You know, the people who are on this program—the parent providers—they need very stringent criteria; that these children are so severely disabled that they can’t be cared for adequately by anyone else or that they’ll be institutionalized.  This was a promise the state made to these people.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Final point.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  In the case of spouse providers, this care is very intimate, personal care in the case of the severely disabled person.  There are ethnic populations that won’t allow someone outside the family to take care of the people in their family.  Things like bathing and toileting, there are people who don’t want other people taking care of them other than their spouses.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much for summarizing, and I do appreciate it.  We’re listening.


One more person in a wheelchair, then we’ll come back over here.  I apologize, but we’ve got to move through as I’m leaving soon.  If you could be brief and to the point and not read testimony.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  With all due respect, ma’am and members of the Assembly, plane rides can be postponed, but people’s needs and your need to listen to us cannot wait.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Actually, with all due respect, that is, I think, inappropriate.  So, please make your two points, and then we’ll move along.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  A few points.  What nation takes aim at the seniors and disabled at a time of crisis?  When the budget is spent to assist people with disabilities and seniors to remain at home, how dare the Governor and the Legislature call it cancer.  When a family budget is tight, we do the responsible thing:  we cut out the nonessentials, but we do not cut on people.


Just to remind you about the timeframe that this budget was put to print, we went to the Governor’s office a few days before Thanksgiving.  He needed to put the budget to be ready by December 15th.  How much time did he ask the people to put together his proposals for budget cuts?  I call that irresponsible.


I have a sister with a developmental disability.  I am able to work, my full-time job, and she goes to her day program.  No to this cutting of the Lanterman Act.  No way over my dead body.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay, thank you.  Next speaker.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  No to making cuts.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  Finally, this is a personal message to Governor Schwarzenegger:  This has become personal.  In the movies you aim your rifle at make-believe characters that instantly play dead under your aim.  You aimed your gun and instantly terminated them.  Now it is your pen; it is your governor’s seat; it is your redlining on the budget; and it will cause real people to bleed.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  Real people to die.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s go ahead and wrap up.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  And we will not allow that to happen!


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’ll share your written testimony.  Just so that you, ma’am, understand. . . . ma’am, are you listening?  The Legislature is not proposing the cuts.  Just so that you understand the facts that you’re stating, it’s not the Legislature’s action.  The more you criticize those who have taken the time to listen, the more harm you do to the credibility of your message.  So, a little mutual respect is warranted for the people who have fought to save the very programs.  It’s not the Legislature that’s proposing this; it’s the Governor.  


So, let’s hear from the next speaker who has been patient.  Who was here first?  Thank you.


MS. MALETTA ARDANDO:  Hi.  My name is Maletta Ardando.  I am both a parent and an employee of Accredited Home Health Services.  


I just wanted to say that as a parent of a child who was diagnosed with Fragile X Syndrome at eighteen months, to this day he’s nine years old and remains nonverbal, remains nontoilet trained.  To take away respite from my family and families of others with my needs eliminates those individuals who have jobs.  We’re providing money to the state because of the employment taxes.  To take away those jobs from them that allows these respite providers who have the knowledge and the skill to be able to work with my child and the tolerance to be able to handle his needs is detrimental.  And the fact that he cannot speak to me, I can only entrust those individuals that I know and work with that want to do this type of work to this disabled community; the ability to be able to protect him because he could never tell me what’s going on or what his situation is like.  And I just ask that you please fight for that for us.  And thank you for listening to us.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  I know you’re going through a tough time, and we’re going to try to deal with it.  Thank you.


MR. BEN DAVIDSON:  Hello.  My name is Ben Davidson.  I’m representing CAHSA and thousands of medically acute, fragile children and adults who can’t be here to represent themselves.  I will be brief.


My main point, besides the other points that were reiterated time and time again up here, is if we are to start a financially sound California, we need to think long term.  The short term is these Medi-Cal cuts will put new patients who would be going into a home, where they would cost two to three thousand dollars less a week for services, they will stay in the hospital.  Also, patients who are receiving care right now will be put in the hospital due to agencies going out of business.


I had many other points, but I’d just like to reiterate the fact that these patients cannot be here to represent themselves.  They’re wonderful.  We provide a quality of service for them.  Please do not cut their needs and our benefits.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ  Thank you very much.  


Thank you for being so patient.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  Thank you.  Good afternoon, and thanks for listening.  I’m standing in for Cindy Venuto and her daughter, Larissa, who hit black ice in Big Bear this morning.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Are they okay?


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  They are okay, but Cindy called me and asked me to please make a statement.


I’ve been lucky to have some very rich experiences in my life.  I’m the daughter of an immigrant who used IHSS as she aged with polio to remain in her home and save the state $400,000.  I’ve been a service coordinator to about 100 people with developmental disabilities and their families for ten years, so I see the scope and the breadth and the depth of the pain of lots of families.  I also am a mother and a fellow advocate with my son, who testified earlier.  I’ve had a friend who died of AIDS when the blood supply was not safe.


I just want to say one major thing.  When I called Governor Schwarzenegger’s offices, both locally and in Sacramento, about ten days ago, I had the most chilling conversations I’ve had in my life.  I talked to someone in Sacramento for twenty minutes who is on the health and human services staff and she told me that the real plan was to eliminate _____________, transportation, nonmedical personal care, and respite.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Was that Senate or Assembly Health and Human Services Committee?


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  Governor’s staff.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I see, okay.  Please continue.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  She called it “res-pite.”  


Locally, the Governor’s. . . . I talked to the Governor’s staff.  Both of them, when I posed the question. . . . I must admit I pretended to be an aunt because they’ll hang up on you if you’re a parent.  So, I said I have a nephew that I think uses some of these services to stay in his house safely, and he needs help with eating and bathing and dressing, and they said:  Yes, we plan to eliminate that.  And I said, “How do you expect my nephew to live if he can’t eat?”  And they said:  Well, that’s a decision every family will have to make for themselves.  And I said, “His parents have disabilities and are aging.  They can’t lift him anymore.  He lives in his own apartment.  Is he going to end up in a nursing home or a state institution?”  And they said:  That’s very possible; it’s a choice every family has to make for themselves.


Thank you very much for listening.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you for taking the time.  I mean, even if the facilities are available, which they’re not, it’s going to cost.  Thank you, again.


Next speaker.


MS. MARY JULIETTE LONA:  Good afternoon.  My name is Mary Juliette Lona, and I’m employed as an in-home care provider.  


I am here with great concern to speak on behalf of my coworkers and consumers.  I am here to speak not only for the preservation of our jobs but for the preservation of services to some of the most helpless and neediest in our society.  The elimination of home care is indicative of a society that has put a price on the care of its citizens and has decided to punish those who are most helpless.  My point is, to eliminate home care services would only hurt those who are most helpless.  


I would be dishonest to say we are not worried about losing our jobs.  I’d like to ask the Governor:  Are you willing to give our fellow man a helping hand?  Would you be willing to clean or care for one who is not able to care for themselves?


I am not here for my personal benefit but on behalf of the elderly and totally dependent for they have no voice.  I strongly urge the Governor:  Please reconsider your proposal to cut these services.  Recognize us all as human beings, not just as figures.  Human misery has a face.  Please remember this when you look in the mirror.


I thank you for your time.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


I want to hear from the two speakers here, and then we’re going to go back to the individuals that are in the wheelchairs.  Please begin.


MS. EVELYN MASON:  My name is Evelyn Mason.  I am your consumer.  I am kinship[?]; a grandmother raising four special-needs grandchildren.  


I was given a kidney two years ago with the approval that I would have support because all of these services needed in my home were so great for me to be eligible.  My grandchildren have many medical problems.  I have twelve doctors, and I had to come off of disability because my medication was too expensive; the kidney medication.  I have, also, medications for visual loss, medications for a herniated disc, medication for arthritis.  I have grandchildren; one particular that is in the regional center.  Therefore, to have that child removed from the regional center care and the services, I requested respite but they found out I had so many medical appointments, so many medical doctors, and so much that was going on in my home, that it was really hard to find someone to walk in my shoes and give me respite.  These children, also, are Medi-Cal receivers.  I just went to the mental health.  They’re in mental health; they’re in neurology; they’re in visual; they’re in Special Ed schools.  


I am a person that when you start thinking of budget cuts, I’m an employee who retired after twenty-some-odd years employed.  My husband was retired from the Navy.  I have a son that was found in a coma two months ago.  He is also a Marine retiree.  I have him in the hospital.  I’m trying to transfer him to the Veterans Hospital.  I now have to find how I am going to give him services.  My sister stated she was leaving my mother who’s had a massive stroke.  I’m also trying to find an in-home provider to come into the home to take care of my mother.  


When you go and talk to the Governor, please let him know you saw the face, you heard the voice of that woman, the person who put in her time in the system.  Also, you have military men coming home to families that are coming home with disabilities.  We do not need to bring them home after they served their time.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We hope they’re coming home soon now, right?


MS. MASON:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you. Can you make sure that my staff gets your name and address?  We may want to have you come and testify in Sacramento.  Thank you.


MS. DANI SALERA:  Hi.  My name is Dani Salera, and I’m a parent of a child with autism, profound mental retardation, and complex medical health issues.  I’m also an employee of the regional center as the director of Health and Medical Services.  Everything that’s been talked about here affects me personally and all the families we try to serve.  


I know I’m preaching to the choir here and you’re probably looking for solutions, and so, the thing that’s coming to mind is, I understand maybe there are going to have to be budget cuts, but why presume to know what it is that we would want to cut?  Allow the regional centers and the families to make those choices.  Self-determination isn’t just for the families, but it’s also the regional centers which are run by family boards, as you know.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, you believe the self-determination model is a good one to consider.


MS. SALERA:  Right.  It shouldn’t come from the state because, obviously, they don’t. . . . you know, it’s possible they may not understand the impact of things like respite or it might seem frivolous, like art therapy, music therapy, horseback riding, which is very essential to children like my son.  My son’s nonverbal.  He is self-injurious.  He will hit himself all day long.  If he did not have all the supports that the regional center has provided and IHSS has provided and Medi-Cal has provided, we would have had no choice but to place him, and it would have been much more costly to the state.  What everybody was saying about that is a very important point.  This is being very shortsighted, all these cuts.  It’s going to turn back time.  The solutions were to put people in the least-restrictive environment in the communities, not back into institutions.  


And the other thing I just wanted to say is in regards to the Medi-Cal cuts, one of my jobs is finding resources—health and medical resources—for our clients, and I want to say they’re virtually nonexistent for adults on Medi-Cal or the uninsured with developmental disabilities who have the additional challenge of not easily being able to wait twelve hours in an emergency room for primary care.  There are no resources out there, particularly for specialists, psychiatrists, and neurologists.  I know you know.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It is one of the problems that we try to articulate.  It’s the specialty providers.  I mean, generalists and primary care physicians are challenge enough, but God forbid these very sick—usually, the ill-served initially in Medi-Cal or the other programs—God forbid they should need specialty care, which the majority do, because they’re simply unavailable and we’re eliminating that option.


MS. SALERA:  I thought it was very compelling what the person from the AIDS organization said about a managed care for people with disabilities or something of that nature.  We need to create something.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’re looking at that as a model as well.  I apologize, I’m going to have to . . . 


MS. SALERA:  Okay, thank you very much.  Appreciate it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you very much.


We want to go to the individual in the wheelchair that has not spoken.  Okay, we have someone from over here.  You may begin.  Thank you.


MS. KIMBERLY HORTON:  My name is Kimberly Horton.  You’re looking at an individual who was put in an institution in 1968 simply because my parents were divorced and my father didn’t know what to do with me.  I have since graduated from high school and currently trying to work on the goal of getting an education in communication disorders for those with verbal disabilities.  I once was told that. . . . well, someone else said this in front of me:  that I would never be out of an institution.  


Please keep the Lanterman Act; keep Medi-Cal services intact.  People like me and many others in the room do not want to lose these services because they’re our backbone to our survival.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much.


One other person in a wheelchair.  Thank you.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  I don’t have a speech written, but I’m here to speak for people like myself—disabled—who have to depend on these programs that are supposed to be cut.  It would be disastrous.  


I’m very angry because I don’t think that the Governor is alone in this thinking of cutting these programs.  I’m very angry but ___________________.  I speak for myself and people like myself.  I’m disabled and I need very much of the ___________ of In-Home Supportive Services.  But I’m going to say one thing.  God is taking good care of me for now, and I hope he’ll keep doing it.  But I’m going to say this and give it to the Governor and to the people that think and believe like him, that if he persists in cutting these programs, that I hope him and his followers will come down with a disability hard enough for all of us and long enough so he can feel the full weight of this bad proposal, these disastrous proposals.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  I hope that message is conveyed.  I appreciate that.


The gentleman here?  No?  Michael, is there anyone else in a wheelchair who needs to speak?  Thank you.


MR. ________ SARRECCHIA[?]:  Thank you very much.  My name is _________ Sarrecchia[?], both a consumer and a member of the board of the regional center of Orange County.  What I’ll do is I’ll submit my prepared statement.  Obviously, you’re on a very limited schedule here.  


I think what we’re seeing here is a lot of anger and a lot of fright.  I can understand that.  Some of these cuts are, frankly, Draconian in nature.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s a mild characterization.


MR. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  I think it’s very mild.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  They’re inhumane.


MR. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  That’s exactly what they are.  


Thank you very, very much for your good work on behalf of the disabled, me among them.  If it weren’t for the services I receive from the center, I would not be able maintain my independent lifestyle.  There would be a very real danger of institutionalization.  


By the way, that trend I’m hearing throughout this entire hearing is extremely alarming.  We should never, never contemplate taking such an enormous step back or into the Dark Ages of service in this country and in this state.  


Like I said, I will submit similar comments, and we also have at the center some proposals ourselves that we’d also like to submit to your committee.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think they’ll be more opportune, but thank you.


I know there’s a young child we want to make sure gets on the mike.  Is there a young child somewhere that’s sitting next to this gentleman who would also like to speak?


MS. ________ CRUZ:  Buenos tardes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Buenos tardes.


MS. CRUZ:  Mi nombre es ________ Cruz.  [Gives her testimony in Spanish and converses back and forth with Senator Ortiz.]


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Gracias, Señora.


Do you want to translate?  You’re not going to want to hear my translation because it will be all totally _________.


MR. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  She mentions briefly that her son has cerebral palsy and please don’t discontinue what her son receives because it will affect not only the big bills but the small ones like the milk and the diapers and other necessities of home.  And she urges Governor Schwarzenegger and you all in leadership to please provide support for the community.


MS. CRUZ:  Una cosa más.


MR. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  Something else.


MS. CRUZ/TRANSLATOR:  I don’t know why there wasn’t an interpreter.  I don’t speak English.  There are a lot of Spanish speaking people here today.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We had interpreters here.


Gracias.


MS. CRUZ/TRANSLATOR:  Thank you very much.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Bueno.


Mr. Vincent, would you mind chairing the remaining part of the meeting?


SENATOR VINCENT:  Fine.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I have a plane to catch, and I’m not going to apologize for that.  


Let me just take a moment to thank SEIU and Health Access.  Your leadership, not just today but last week in Sacramento, is the very kind of leadership and empowerment that we need to continue seeing throughout the State of California in all of the programs.  A comparable massacre could occur in the education arena.  There are countless for foster care.  We haven’t even touched on the impact to local government or the Vehicle License Fee, and but for the advocacy of all of you here, but for Health Access and SEIU, your voices wouldn’t be heard.  So, I really want to thank you.


I also want to thank the interpreters that were here earlier, as well as the signers.  Alan Charmin and Laura Riplinger have been here all day working hard.  Thank you for making government available to the hearing impaired.  


And finally, for those of you who do have written testimony, please give it to my staff, who will be leaving.  I don’t know if you’re on the same flight that I’m on.  But I’m sorry we couldn’t take more time.  The quality of the testimony was extreme, and I’m going to ask my friend and colleague to moderate the remaining speakers.  I apologize for running out of time, but we’re listening.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Let me say something before you go.  I’ve sat up here for a while and listened to the conversations, and there’ve been some very important ones.  But I want you to understand who’s on what side, as there seems to be some problems with that.


We are elected as public servants who work for the people.  Not on them but for them.  Now, these so-called budget cuts without a doubt is working on people instead of working for them.  There’s no question about that.  


I want to also thank everybody for coming and for your participation in this informational hearing, but let me tell you about the informational hearing.  This hearing was arranged and set up by the chairperson here—Deborah Ortiz.  She did it.  She arranged it.  She set it up, she stayed here, and she sacrificed time to be here.  And let me say this.  I thank her very much for that.  And I also want to thank her for her continued efforts in helping the people . . . [tape turned – portion of text missing].


If anybody wants to speak, I’ll listen to you and report it back.


Thank you.


MS. ERNESTINE BARNES:  My name is Ernestine Barnes, and I actually run a day program.  I have had polio but I’m able to walk and do activities.  


I’ve been in the field working with the developmentally disabled for 38 years, and I do run two day programs; one in Inglewood and one in Lawndale.  I’d just like to support the Lanterman Act.  I’m from back East, and I saw the major changes that the laws made back there for people with disabilities.  I’m also an instructor.  I train people that work in the group homes on effective ways of providing quality of life and dealing with some of the issues and the disability needs that the individuals here say.


I could not supercede anything that has been said already from this population.  The people that are here in the wheelchairs, I only compliment them for the efforts that they have made in getting up in the morning and getting dressed and being here.  It’s a major accomplishment.


We support the Lanterman Act, and I also support and applaud the people that are here advocating and applaud you also for being here to help us.


Thank you.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you very much.


MS. BARNES:  And I just want to say one more thing.  I’m really surprised at the Governor for addressing this population when, for years, he has supported the Special Olympics.  These are individuals that have disabilities.  So, I really, really am quite surprised at it.  


Thank you again.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you very much.


Would you identify yourself, sir?


MR. FRANK LOPEZ:  Yes, my name is Frank Lopez, and I am a client of a regional center and CAPC.  I have a problem of living on my own; I need help.  I would like the Governor not to take away my services so that I can live a normal life like everyone else.


MS. LYNETTE LOZANO:  Hello.  My name is Lynette Lozano, and I work for CAPC.  I am a community advocate, and I advocate for people like Frank Lopez and Victor, that’s standing behind me.  


I feel that this Governor is taking advantage of the most vulnerable people in the State of California.  Not only are these people the most vulnerable, but they do not have the funds to defend themselves against the large corporate lobbyists that roam our State Capitol.  


I think that the solution to some of our problems would be to tax the top three percent of the wealthiest people in the State of California that do not pay their fair share of taxes.  Also, the large corporations, they get a lot of government kickback.  Also, by reimposing our car license fee by one-third of the cost instead of what Governor Gray Davis had proposed.  I’m pretty sure that everybody that’s driving, including myself, will be affected by this, but it will be a way so that people with disabilities can have a way to live their normal life.


Thank you.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you very much.  I thank both of you.


MS. SYDNEY KAMLAGER:  Hi.  My name is Sydney Kamlager.  I work at Crystal Stairs.  We are one of the largest nonprofit child development corporations in this state, servicing central and south Los Angeles as well as the cities of Hawthorne, Lawndale, Gardena, and Inglewood.  I’m here not only to represent Crystal Stairs but the 25,000 children and 11,000 families that use our services each day.  


Reducing Medi-Cal and capping enrollment in Healthy Families will keep out hundreds of thousands of eligible children from receiving preventative health care that is considerably cheaper for all of us than it is the trips to the emergency room.  Our Children’s Health and Wellness department has seen enrollment up in the Healthy Families Program.  We also deal with numerous Medi-Cal clients.  We have seen parents excited about the hope that their children may be allowed health care.  Our average family is earning below the federal poverty level and is making potentially life-altering decisions each day between safety, nutrition, health care, and child care.


Please don’t allow Healthy Families to be capped or Medi-Cal to be reduced, destroying what little hope some of these families still have.


Thank you.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you.  Thank you very much.


I’ve heard the word “Inglewood” mentioned a couple of times, by two speakers.  I live in Inglewood.  I was the mayor there for fourteen years.  I was on the city council there, and I was a school board member there, so I know what you’re talking about.  My wife worked in Compton—somebody kept mentioning Compton—for thirty-three years, and my chief of staff sitting over there, his wife is a doctor in Drew Medical Center.  So, we’re very up to speed on what’s going on, but again, I want you guys to know that somebody voted for Schwarzenegger.  Somebody voted for him.  There’ll be future elections also.


Go ahead, ma’am.


MS. ELIZA THOMPSON:  Good afternoon.  My name is Eliza Thompson, and I’m an advocate for TASK (Team of Advocacy for Special Kids).  For many years TASK has been serving families with disability children.  


As far as the Lanterman Act, I’m here to support that because if the Lanterman Act wasn’t in place at the time, my daughter wouldn’t have had all of the services and she wouldn’t be as successful as she is today.  She has a disorder of processing and it is very bad and now, right today, and over the years, she now teaches Down Syndrome and learning disability kids at the daycare center on Olive.  I won’t give the name.


But my point is, if you take away in-home care, if you take away Medi-Cal, what are the families here in Los Angeles going to do?  How are they going to survive?  Who’s going to take care of the people?


SENATOR VINCENT:  I’m going to cut in for a minute.  When I first sat in this seat, I read this letter when I first came.  I read this letter.  These questions should be answered by the person who’s making these proposals.


MS. THOMPSON:  That’s right.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Not people who are trying to stop them.  And based on what you’re doing, we need to have these testimonies.  So, if you have a written statement, please give us those written statements so we can take them back to Sacramento and do it through the whole caucus.  I appreciate it.


MS. THOMPSON:  In closing I would just like to say, once you all go to Sacramento and speak with Governor Schwarzenegger, please tell him he would be doing a disservice to Los Angeles by making these cuts.


Thank you.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you.


MS. PRECIOUS JACKSON:  Hi.  Good afternoon.  My name is Precious Jackson, and I am a woman who is living with HIV.  I’ve been living with the virus for five years now.  


I also work at an organization called Women Alive Coalition, and the women that we serve that live in SPA 6, which is Service Planning Area, which is south-central Los Angeles, the women that we see that come through the clinics there are well into the progression of the disease.  What I mean by that—“well into the progression of the disease” of AIDS—they are in need of medication.  And with Governor Schwarzenegger implementing a cap on ADAP, that means that those women will not be able to receive medications in order to prolong their life.  As well, women who are HIV-positive, some of those women may want to start a family.  That will also be in conflict with them as far as allowing them to have medication to prevent mother-to-child transmission.


My resolution for the crisis for ADAP is to mandate the FDA for pharmaceutical companies to manufacture “bliss” packages for like a seven-day supply as a trial run for consumers to use if consumers suffer from side effects from the trial packages.  What happens is the doctor prescribes a combination, and sometimes the consumers don’t do well with the medication.  So, if the pharmaceutical companies can come up with a “bliss” package, which is like a trial run, and the consumer does well, then the physician can write a prescription.  Normally for a prescription, it costs $1,400 a month.  So, that will save ADAP if they would do the “bliss” packages without having to write one prescription and the consumer doesn’t do well and then they have to write another one.  So, that’s thousands of dollars that’s going down the drain which will save ADAP.


Once again, I’d like to thank you guys for coming down and listening to the public speaking, and I really, truly, truly hope that these public testimonies will be heard in Sacramento.  Thanks once again.


SENATOR VINCENT:  They will.  And again, when you have some written documentation, please send it because we can always use that in our caucuses to talk about these things.


That’s what we’re here for really—to serve the public.  That’s what we got elected for.  Public servants.


MS. JACKSON:  Thank you.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you very much for coming.


MS. CYNTHIA BILLEY:  Good afternoon.  Cynthia Billey, adoption attorney, with the Alliance for Children’s Rights in Los Angeles.  


The Alliance is deeply concerned about the impact the proposed budget cuts will have on the number of disabled children in foster care who will be able to be adopted.  We work every day to ensure that children in foster care have safe and permanent homes.  Capping enrollment and eliminating services provided by regional centers will mean parents will no longer be able to care for their children at home.  It will mean that many potential foster and adoptive families will literally be unable to take foster children with special needs into their homes.  Instead, these foster children will grow up in institutional care.  These proposed cuts to regional centers will take us back in time—thirty years back in time—when disabled children were literally kept separate from their families and society in institutions.  To preserve families and give disabled children the same chance to grow up in a family is exactly why the historic Lanterman Act was passed.  Plus, this kind of public policy makes no economic sense.  The $40,000 or more it costs for institutional care for a disabled foster child per year will greatly exceed any savings these cuts claim to make in the short term.


In closing, I just wanted to share that I’m finalizing an adoption this month, just before Christmas, for a foster parent who’s been caring for a severely developmentally disabled boy in her home for the past eleven years, since she picked him up from the now closed McClaren Hall at the age of three.  Without Loyce[?] and regional center programs, Billy Ray would have grown up in McClaren and other institutions instead of with a loving and nurturing family.  


If regional centers are capped and cut, children of foster care who are disabled will be denied both a home and a family and the services they need to develop and thrive and reach their full potential.  Should children who have waited in foster care for years for an adoptive family and who have the chance to be adopted with the help of regional centers now have to wait for eligibility?  Can we afford to lose these foster parents?


Thank you.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you very much.  Again, if you have some written documentation and you want to turn it in, we’d certainly appreciate it so we can meet with the other members and discuss what you’ve discussed.


Yes, ma’am.


MS. KATHLEEN RIVET:  Thank you, Mr. Vincent, for being the Lone Ranger.  


My name is Kathleen Rivet.  I am the parent of seven adult children, two of whom are developmentally disabled and multiply handicapped.  My two sons live in a modular home together with support services.  They have, over the course of the years, lived in state institutions, group homes, small group homes, hospital-like settings, a variety of placements, over the years.  It was not until we got them into their own home that we have had success in meeting their needs.  


My concern is that with the elimination of services, such as support services (the IHSS services) and respite, we will be killing off the services that will eventually have to be restored.  We will not have a well to draw from, and we’ll have to reeducate people to provide these services.  Additionally, the people that provide these services are legitimate taxpayers.  They have families that they support.  And you are creating—not you personally—but this elimination of the process will be kind of a domino principle:  that you kill off one service, you put those people that work in that into another area where they’re not as well equipped.  To cap families entering the DD system is, in itself, arbitrary and capricious, just to say, Well, as of January 1 we can’t take anymore people.  These people didn’t opt to have disabled children any more than I did.  They, too, are taxpayers and fully vested citizens of the State of California, and they should have the same rights that I would be enjoying or any other person.  


The denial of an appeals process does not apply to any other state agency, and, in fact, the regional center system, while it is referred to as a private nonprofit corporation, is, in fact, wholly funded by the State of California and is a state agency, and one should have the same basic civil rights under that agency as they do under any other agency.


And while it is not publicly voiced, because it would be politically incorrect to do so, the aged, the special-need population, and the disabled are all essentially regarded as welfare types and are considered an expendable population.


I might add that in Nazi Germany it was, in fact, the retarded, the developmentally disabled, and the elderly who were considered the first disposable population, and I hope we are not going down a path once again that would create a slow genocide for this same population.


SENATOR VINCENT:  I hope you have that in writing.


MS. RIVET:  Well, I have my notes, but I can put it in writing.


SENATOR VINCENT:  With that kind of information, you need to send it to us.


MS. RIVET:  I will do that.


SENATOR VINCENT:  And we appreciate what you’re saying.


MS. RIVET:  I also want to call attention to the fact that even today, testimony for those in wheelchairs was outside the wall, so to speak.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Okay.  We appreciate it.  Let’s get to the other two.


MS. RIVET:  Thank you so much.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Let me say this.  Senator Ortiz really works hard on this.


MS. RIVET:  I know.  I understand, and that’s why I appreciate her being here.


SENATOR VINCENT:  She had to go back, but she’s a wonderful person and she’s for you all the way.  Believe me, she is.


MS. RIVET:  I do understand that.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you very much, ma’am, for your testimony.


MS. RIVET:  Thank you.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Go ahead.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  Hello.  I appreciate your staying also.


I am a single parent and have been for many years.  I have three children; I’ve had to raise three children.  One is developmentally disabled with CP and manifestations of autism, and I get IHSS.  It enables me to keep my son at home, and he’s progressing.  He’s doing okay right now.  He had some bad times, but being home has helped him a great deal always.  


The thing I’m objecting to is with the new cuts in In-Home Support Service, they’re considering protective supervision as residual.  There are so many, my son included, that need this.  My son can’t be left alone.  I wouldn’t be here today if I couldn’t get respite.  So, to consider protective supervision as something that can be just discarded, it would just affect so many of the population and would throw me into, really, a bad way.  So, that’s my complaint on that.


And then I would like to say something about respite.  Respite services are, or is, a key component in the regional center service system.  Respite enables one to take a much needed break from the care and supervision of their loved ones who have disabilities.  Many families are already, as we heard today, stretched to the breaking point.  Without access to respite services, many of the families will be compelled to seek—again, as we heard today—costly, unwanted institutional care.  As a single parent, I could not live without respite.  I wouldn’t be going outside the door to shop, to advocate for my son, to get a little R&R once in a while.  I would say that it is definitely a core program.  They’re calling respite a noncore program, and it is so necessary.  


That is what I have to contribute.  And thank you so much for listening.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you.  I know some people personally who are sharing the same kinds of situations that you’re involved in.  It’s in another county.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  And when you’re a single parent, believe me, you don’t go anyplace.  


Thank you so much.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you so much for your comments, ma’am.


MS. TERRI LANTZ:  My name is Terri Lantz.  I wear several hats.  I am the daughter of two seniors who have severe disabilities who soon will probably have to use Medi-Cal.  They’ve been using all their own money, and it’s soon gone.  I’m also the aunt of a young girl, Catherine, who was with the regional center.  She passed away a couple of years ago.  Thank God we still had the Lanterman Act and services available to her in her short life.  


I fear for the parents and families and the individuals that you saw seated at the back of the room, that if that act is suspended, we may never see the civil rights again put in place for people with developmental disabilities.  I wonder how people will judge California if that were to happen.  As a taxpayer, I’d be more than willing to pay the full license fee, and I’m sure there are others that would too if they knew what was at risk.  


I’ve worked in the field thirty years for United Cerebral Palsy.  The individuals at the back of the room asked me to speak for them because they had to leave.  UCP has 29 group homes serving 350 people that are funded through Medi-Cal.  They’ve already sustained the 5 percent cut.  We all understand we have to tighten our belts.  Another 10 percent, our executive director said to me Friday, he doesn’t know how he would close a home.


SENATOR VINCENT:  I just want to interrupt for a minute.  This is very good information, but the people that should be hearing it didn’t show up.  So, that’s why I keep referring to documenting it or written statements so we can take it back.


MS. LANTZ:  We turned in a hundred letters today from individuals with disabilities and/or family members.


SENATOR VINCENT:  That’s very good.


MS. LANTZ:  I also wanted to say just something to think about.  With the caps with regional center, that’s going to prevent people from coming into the system, and it’s going to lessen the Medicaid waiver dollars that can come from the federal government.  So, we’re cutting our own nose to spite our face, so to speak.


SENATOR VINCENT:  That was something stated on the Senate Floor during the vote, that some of the people that would be waiting to get in some of the capped programs, they’d have to die, those inside, for somebody else new to get inside.


MS. LANTZ:  Absolutely.


SENATOR VINCENT:  That doesn’t make much sense.


MS. LANTZ:  Again, I think what this would do, all of this, is take us back at least thirty years, and I would hate to see the outcome of that.  


And I really appreciate you and Senator Ortiz today for coming here and listening to all of us, and Senator Alarcón as well.  Thank you so much.


SENATOR VINCENT:  I just want to add one other thing.  I was going to say this before, but I like to hear what you guys have to say, and I don’t want to take up the time.  But it was great of Senator Ortiz to arrange this meeting, to have this meeting, to come from Sacramento.  That’s her district.  She came into our district, which is L.A. County.  I certainly appreciate it, and everybody living in L.A. County should appreciate it as well.


MS. LANTZ:  Well, we definitely appreciate that, and thank you for listening to all of us.  Hopefully, you’ll carry the message for us.


SENATOR VINCENT:  No question about it.  And some of you guys, what you’re doing, you can send the message too.  Write it.  What you see on television most of the time with you-know-who, the crowds, everybody, is cheering for him, but they don’t see what these people here were talking about today.  That’s not on television.


MS. LANTZ:  I wish they would come to the homes and the programs and meet the parents.


SENATOR VINCENT:  But anyway, we appreciate you.


MS. LANTZ:  Thank you for doing so.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you.


You’re on, ma’am.


MS. CAT DODSON:  Senator Vincent, I’m Cat—that’s C-A-T—Dodson.  I am disabled with a disease similar to multiple sclerosis.


I am terribly frightened about what’s going on.  As a person who’s worked since I was fifteen years old until I became disabled, I have Medicare and Medi-Cal, but there is so much that I need that is essential that I have to pay for myself even now.  When I came here, I supported my daughter.  When I divorced my husband, I had three children:  nine months, six years, nine years.  I could have lived on the welfare system.  I refused.  I went to work.  So, as a person who worked all my life, I expected to still be working.  I am losing the use of my fingers.  I cannot button a button.  I cannot zipper a zipper.  I can’t open Velcro.  People don’t realize how devastating this type of thing is.  I have an IHS provider, who is my grandson, who comes in and helps me and takes me shopping.  I think this is just the tip of the iceberg.  If all of this goes through, the day’s going to come that I can’t do things for myself that I can now.  It’s progressive.  My disease is progressive.  


So, we need all these things.  I just terrifies me what’s happening.  And I appreciate you coming here.


SENATOR VINCENT:  I appreciate you coming down and making these presentations.  And it’ll be heard, believe me.  It’ll be heard.


MS. DODSON:  Do you have e-mail addresses?  I can’t type anymore, but I can type a letter, like an e-mail, using one finger now.


SENATOR VINCENT:  I’ll tell you what you can do.  You can call my office and talk to my staff.  As a matter of fact, he’ll talk to you now.


MS. DODSON:  Thank you, sir.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you very much.


MS. AVIVA SPENN[?]:  Hello.  My name is Aviva Spenn[?], and I have a different kind of news.  


I want to, first, thank you very much for being the messenger for us.  


I’m the mother, a single parent, for two children; one who has cerebral palsy and cataracts.  Mine is a success story.  My daughter was one of the recipients of the Lanterman Act and the Westside Regional Center, and she sits beside me.  She’s now going to UCLA as the president of the Disabled Student Union, and the reason she can do that and the reason she’s able to do that is because of these services.  She still has her problems.  She still has the things she needs.  But she has a voice, and the reason she feels empowered to be autonomous as she can be and to give back to the community is because of these exact services that believed in her, and she is teaching others to believe in themselves.  


So, I say to you that Governor Schwarzenegger needs to know what these services can do, what they’re capable of doing, and to feed the community at large.  My daughter is one example of it, and I implore you to give him that good news.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Be happy to do it.


MS. SPENN:  I will write it down, as will my daughter.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Make sure you write it down so I can see it very well.  As a matter of fact, when you said UCLA, my ears kind of popped a little bit because that’s where my granddaughter goes.  She’s a sophomore at UCLA.  He’ll get your message quick.


Thank you for coming down and testifying.


MS. SPENN:  Thank you very much.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you very much.


Thank you for staying.  We’ve heard the message, and we’ll do everything we can to help.  This is has been a very tremendous informational hearing.  We appreciate everybody who came and participated.  And again, we should really recognize Senator Ortiz for all she’s doing to make these things happen.  She does a good job.  


Thank you very much, and these proceedings are adjourned.
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